
 

Democratic Services 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
10.00 am, THURSDAY, 10TH MAY, 2018 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1SH 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Bethan Adams 

01286 679020 

BethanAdams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru  

(DISTRIBUTED 01/05/18) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
mailto:BethanAdams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MEMBERSHIP (19) 
 
 

Plaid Cymru (10) 
 

Councillors 
 

Aled Ll. Evans Aled Wyn Jones Charles Wyn Jones 
Huw Gruffydd Wyn Jones Berwyn Parry Jones Peter Read 

Paul John Rowlinson Cemlyn Rees Williams Gethin Glyn Williams 
Vacant Seat   

 
 

Independent (5) 
 

Councillors 
 

John Brynmor Hughes Richard Medwyn Hughes 
Dewi Wyn Roberts John Pughe Roberts 

Angela Russell  

 
 

Llais Gwynedd (1) 
 

Councillor 
Alwyn Gruffydd 

 
 

Lib / Lab (1) 
 

Councillor 
Sion W. Jones 

 
 

Gwynedd United Independents (1) 
 

Vacant Seat 
 
 

Lay Member  
 

Mrs Sharon Warnes 
 
 

Ex-officio Members 
Chair and Vice-Chair of the Council 

 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   CHAIR 
 

 

 To elect a Chair for 2018/19. 

 
 

2.   VICE-CHAIR 
 

 

 To elect a Vice-chair for 2018/19. 

 
 

3.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

4.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest. 

 
 

5.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items which are urgent business in the opinion of the Chairman 
so they may be considered. 

 

 

6.   MINUTES 
 

    4 - 10 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
committee, held on 8 February 2018, be signed as a true record.  

 

 

7.   2018 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
 

 

 To submit the reports of the external auditor. 

 
 

(A)  GWYNEDD COUNCIL 11 - 38 
 

(B)  GWYNEDD PENSION FUND 
 

39 - 50 

 
8.   INTERNAL AUDIT OUTPUT 29/1/18 - 31/3/18 

 
  51 - 87 

 To submit the report of the Audit Manager. 

 
 

9.   HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 
 

 88 - 104 

 To submit the report of the Audit Manager. 

 
 

 



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 8/02/18 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 8/2/18 
 

 
Present:   Councillor R Medwyn Hughes (Chairman)  
  Councillor John Brynmor Hughes (Vice-chair) 
   
Councillors: Alwyn Gruffydd, Aled Wyn Jones, Berwyn Parry Jones, Huw G. Wyn Jones, Dewi 
Wyn Roberts, John Pughe Roberts, Paul Rowlinson, Angela Russell, Cemlyn Williams and 
Gethin Glyn Williams.  
 
Lay Member: Sharon Warnes 
 
Others invited:  Peredur Jenkins (Cabinet Member for Finance) 
 
Also in Attendance: Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Dewi Morgan (Senior 
Revenue and Risk Manager), Luned Fôn Jones (Audit Manager), Ffion Madog Evans (Senior 
Finance Manager - for Items 5-8 on the agenda), Caroline Roberts (Investment Manager - for 
Item 9 on the agenda) and Bethan Adams (Member Support Officer).  
 
Apologies: Councillors Aled Ll. Evans and Charles Wyn Jones.  
 
1. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 
 No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present. 
 
2. MINUTES 
 

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of this Committee, held on 30 
November 2017, as a true record. 

 
3. REVENUE BUDGET 2017/18 – THIRD QUARTER REVIEW  

 
Submitted - the report of the Head of Finance Department noting that in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011, the Audit and Governance 
Committee was expected to scrutinise some financial matters including budget monitoring 
reports, where appropriate. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance set out the context and elaborated on the content of the 
report submitted to Cabinet on 16 January 2018.  
 
He noted that, overall, the third quarter review of the budgets reflected acceptable financial 
control by a number of the Council's departments, however, a combination of specific 
actions were recommended to the Education, Adults, Health and Well-being, Children and 
Supporting Families and Highways and Municipal Departments to ensure control of their 
budgets by 31 March 2018. 
 
He drew attention to the Cabinet's decision: 
 
"To accept the report on the third quarter review of the Revenue Budget (as at 31 
December 2017) and consider the latest financial position of each department/service's 
budget, and ask the Cabinet Members and the relevant heads of department to take 
appropriate steps on matters under their leadership/management.  
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 8/02/18 

It was resolved to harvest (£270k) from the underspend on Council Tax Reduction, (12k) 
one-off underspend on bids and (£803k) from grants received and favourable conditions on 
other Council budgets, and transfer them to the Financial Strategy Reserve to assist with 
unavoidable one-off pressures on the Council’s budgets, with an element of it returned to 
compensate for the possible impact of school taxis overspend at year end." 

 
 During the ensuing discussion, officers and the Cabinet Member responded to members' 

enquiries as follows: 

 In the context of gross expenditure of over £5m, an overspend of £198,000 under the 
'Catering and Cleaning' heading in the Education Department was not a substantial 
sum. The Council had resolved to find savings by raising the price of school meals to 
increase income, and it was reflected in the figures that the income was less than what 
had been projected rather than there being an overspend; 

 In terms of the overspend under the 'Transport' heading in the Education Department:   
 Discussions had been held with the Education Department and the Environment 

Department in terms of alternative solutions rather than using taxis to transport 
pupils to schools. As the overspend was unavoidable, bridging finance would be 
transferred to the Education Department at the end of the financial year; 

 There was a deficit in the income of post-16 transport ticket sales, as a 
consequence of the ticket costs increases, some pupils/students had made 
alternative arrangements. A member's observation as to whether there was a link 
between the shortfall and a change to the Council's post-16 Transport policy to 
an uniform ticket rate, would be sent to the Head of Education Department;   

 The member would have to contact the Head of Highways and Municipal Department 
to obtain confirmation on where the recycling material was sold. It was explained that 
there had been a significant drop in the prices of recycling materials; 

 In relation to the overspend under the ‘Out of County Placements’ heading within the 
Children and Families Department, the Council was seeking local solutions but that 
some children with more severe needs had been placed in specialist placements. It 
was a field that all north Wales Councils were overspending on and experts in the field 
were considering if joint special support could be provided.   

 
RESOLVED to note the situation and the relevant risks in the context of the Council’s 
budgets and those of its departments. 

 
4. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017/18 – THIRD QUARTER REVIEW  
 

Submitted - the report of the Head of Finance Department, providing details of the revised 
programme and the relevant sources of finance. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance set out the context and elaborated on the content of the 
report submitted to the Cabinet on 16 January 2018. It was noted there were firm plans in 
place to invest approximately £30.6m in 2017/18, with £5.8m of it funded through specific 
grants. Attention was drawn to the increase of £0.776m in the budget for the three-year 
capital programme since the second quarter review position. 
 
A member enquired, given that the portion spent in the first nine months of the current 
financial year accounted for 51%, did they anticipate further slippage in the capital 
programme? In response, the Cabinet Member for Finance noted that he was confident that 
the money would be spent in accordance with the capital programme, however should 
money be carried over to the 2018/19 financial year he was confident that this would not 
lead to a financial loss for the Council. The Head of Finance Department added that a 
further grant of £1.8m for highways improvements had been received since the report had 
been published and the Head of Highways and Municipal Department had arrangements in 
place to spend the money. He explained that expenditure in the last quarter of the financial 
year did usually tend to be relatively heavy. 

Page 5



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 8/02/18 

In response to an observation by a member about the expenditure slippage under the 
heading 'Vehicles Renewals (Highways and Municipal Department)’ to the 2018/19 financial 
year, the Head of Finance Department noted that historically, the Department used to lease 
vehicles, but following new legislation under the Prudential Code, the Department had 
invested money in a fund over time and would spend the money when there was a need to 
renew vehicles.   
 

RESOLVED to note the situation and the relevant risks in the context of the Council’s 
capital programme. 

 

5. SAVINGS OVERVIEW: PROGRESS REPORT ON REALISING SAVINGS SCHEMES  
 

Submitted - the report of the Head of Finance Department which reported on the latest 
situation on realising the saving schemes.  
 

 The Cabinet Member for Finance set out the context and elaborated on the content of the 
report submitted to Cabinet on 16 January 2018.  He noted that 103 of 122 of the 2017/18 
savings schemes had been realised in full or in part and seven were on track to be delivered 
on time. He highlighted that the slippage in realising the 2017/18 savings schemes included 
the significant challenge of realising on a number of schemes within the Adults, Health and 
Well-being Department and the Children and Families Department.  

 

 He notified the Committee that the Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being had 
confirmed to the Cabinet meeting his intention to submit a report on amalgamating the 
Department's savings scheme to the Cabinet in due course. In relation to the challenge of 
realising the ‘Improving Benefits by Transforming Children Services' saving scheme within 
the Children and Families Department, the Cabinet Member for Children was currently 
addressing the matter. He noted that funding child care services was a matter of concern for 
many local authorities, but the Cabinet Member was urged to make a decision soon on the 
way forward with the transformation plan. 

 

 The Cabinet Member for Finance noted there was positive progress towards realising the 
2015/16 - 2017/18 saving schemes.   

 

 A member referred to the Cabinet's decision on 13 December 2016, that the secondary 
schools proportion of savings within the schools saving scheme would be bridged by the 
Council for two years. He asked how sustainable this was. In response, the Head of 
Finance Department noted that the Council would be facing difficult decisions by this time 
next year, the next item on the agenda noted that it was recommended for the Cabinet to 
recommend to the Full Council that that the budget for 2018/19 should be balanced by 
increasing Council Tax and achieving the planned savings, with no further savings required. 
Furthermore, he explained that Welsh Government was transferring grants such as the 
Schools Improvement Grant into the general settlement the Council received from the 
Government, however there was no increase in the settlement. Therefore, reducing specific 
grants meant a significant reduction in school funding, however there would be no cuts in 
Gwynedd in the 2018/19 financial year. 

 

 In response to an observation by a member regarding which plan within the Highways and 
Municipal Department was continuing to cause concern, the Head of Finance Department 
noted that the reference was to the 'Reduction in the Frequency of Municipal Grass Cutting 
and Collection' scheme and that a report would be submitted to the Communities Scrutiny 
Committee in relation to the scheme. In response to a follow-up question, the Head of 
Finance Department noted that the Highways and Municipal Department had carried out 
grass cuts more often that what had been planned following requests from Councillors. 

 
 RESOLVED to note the situation and the relevant risks in the context of the savings 

overview. 

Page 6



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 8/02/18 

6. 2018/19 BUDGET AND 2018/19 - 2020/21 FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 

Submitted – the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance on the Council Budget for 
2018/19, providing an opportunity for the Audit and Governance Committee to scrutinise the 
information in terms of its financial propriety prior to the report being submitted to the 
Cabinet on 13 February. 

 

 The Cabinet Member for Finance set out the background and context of the report. He 
referred to the four budget seminars held during January/February to obtain members' 
input, noting that the discussions had been detailed, sensible and constructive. 

 

 The Head of Finance Department elaborated on the content of the report and noted that the 
Council would receive a reduction of approximately £2m from the Welsh Government in its 
2019/20 settlement, and was also facing higher employment costs of approximately £6m as 
a result of a national agreement by the 2019/20 financial year. There would also be general 
inflation costs and increasing demands in care services. These factors indicated that 
2019/20 was going to be challenging. He noted that there was a genuine need for the 
Welsh Local Government Association to press on Welsh Government to improve the grant 
settlement and reduce the financial pressure on local government.  

 

 He noted that in line with the midterm three year financial plan, there was a need to ensure 
that the Council's arrangements were flexible enough to be able to realise up to £20m  
savings over three years from 2018/19 - 2020/21. It was recommended that the Cabinet 
should continue with the current savings strategy, and the Cabinet should decide on 
different targets for the Council departments, the heads of department submitting possible 
savings to meet those targets and the scrutiny committees challenging the schemes on 
behalf of the people of Gwynedd, before holding a public consultation on options to be 
implemented every year. 

 

 Attention was drawn to Appendix 1 of the report submitted to the Cabinet, which detailed 
the unavoidable bids to respond to the pressures on services. He referred to the equality 
impact assessment, the well-being assessment in terms of the requirements of the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 along with an assessment of the risk 
estimations.   

 

 Members were given an opportunity to ask questions and make observations. During the 
discussion, the following main points were highlighted:- 

 Would central government change its stance as a result of the financial problems 
already witnessed in some local councils? 

 Welsh Government provided too much funding to the Health Service when 
compared with local councils. The situation was not sustainable; 

 The financial position was beyond the Council's control with an agenda to 
reorganise local government to force councils to comply; 

 By how much would the Council Tax need to be increased to ‘stand still’ over the 
next two years? 

 In terms of risks, accept that interest rates were likely to increase with inflation, 
however, when the Bank of England increases interest rates, this was often not 
reflected immediately by the banks, it was likely that there would be a gap. What 
was meant by budgeting additional costs for the Council as a result of an increase in 
inflation by using reserve funds as required? 

 The impact of the United Kingdom leaving the European Union was not yet known 
and it would inevitably have an impact on the Council's financial position. 

 

The questions and observations were responded to as follows:- 

 It was hoped to persuade Welsh Government in relation to an increase in the grant 
settlement for the 2019/20 financial year. The flexibility within the Welsh 
Government budget meant that the Government could be more generous; 

Page 7



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 8/02/18 

 Without making savings in the next two years the Council Tax would have to be 
increased by approximately 25% in the next two years to find £14m; 

 Reference was made specifically to the reserve budget in terms of budgeting the 
additional cost to the Council as a result of the rise in inflation. Of the £4.7 million for 
pay inflation, approximately £4.4 million was to address the inflation, but a reserve of 
£350k had also been included for teachers, as their national pay agreement would 
be implemented from September. He noted that should the schools ask for 
additional funding to accommodate the pay inflation for half a year, they would only 
consider providing additional funding if individual school balances were less than 
5%. It was agreed that this was an example of managing risk and using a sensible 
approach. 

 
It was noted that the work of the officers of the Finance Department and the Cabinet 
Member for Finance was appreciated.  

 
RESOLVED to note and accept the report and the relevant risks, and to recommend 
that the Cabinet should: 
(i) recommend that the Council (at its meeting on 1 March 2018):  

1.  Establish a budget of £242,862,930 for 2018/19, to be funded by 
£175,127,330 of Government Grant and £67,735,600 Council Tax income, 
with an increase of 4.8%. 

2.  Establish a capital programme of £8.389m in 2018/19 to be funded by 
sources noted in clause 9.4 of the report.  

(ii)  note the Medium Term Financial Plan in Section B, and adopt the strategy which 
is in part 32-34 of the Plan. 

 
7. TREASURY MANAGEMENT - TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, 

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION STRATEGY AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
FOR 2018/19 

  
 Submitted – the report of the Head of Finance Department asking the committee to 

recommend to the Full Council on 1 March to adopt the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and the Annual Investment Strategy for 2018/19, the Prudential Indicators, the 
Minimum Revenue Provision Strategy and the merger arrangements with the Pension Fund 
in terms of investing daily cash flow.  

 
 The Head of Finance Department set out the context and elaborated on the content of the 

report.  
 
 Members expressed their appreciation for the briefing meeting held on 24 January, 2018 for 

Committee members with a specialist consultant from the Arlingclose company, namely the 
Council's treasury management consultants. 

 
 RESOLVED to recommend to the Full Council on 1 March to adopt the Treasury 

Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy for 2018/19 
(Appendix A), the Prudential Indicators (Appendix B), the Minimum Revenue 
Provision Statement (Appendix C) and the merger arrangements with the Pension 
Fund for the investment of daily cash flow. 

 
8. REPORT OF THE CONTROLS IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP 
 
 Submitted – the report of the Chairman of the Committee on a meeting of the above-

mentioned working group held on 22 January 2018 to consider the 'Health and Safety - 
Primary Schools' audits along with audits that had received a category C rating, namely - 

 a) Disposal of Confidential Waste – the use of Red Sacks and Shredders 
 b) Health and Safety - Ysgol Dyffryn Ardudwy 

Page 8



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 8/02/18 

Officers had been invited to attend the meeting to discuss the matters that had arisen from 
the audits and the work undertaken since the audit reports had been published in order to 
reinforce the internal controls in question.  

 

In response to an enquiry by a member about the role of Estyn and GwE in relation to 
school health and safety policies, the Audit Manager noted that schools tended to contact 
the Education Department to ask for copies of the policy after they received confirmation of 
an audit by Estyn.  She doubted that the health and safety policies would be in place in the 
event of a random audit. She noted that GwE was more involved with the education aspect. 

 

 RESOLVED to accept the report. 
 

9. INTERNAL AUDIT OUTPUT 18/11/17 - 26/1/18 
 

  Submitted - the report of the Audit Manager outlining the Internal Audit section’s work for the 
period. It was noted that nine reports on audits from the action plan and one grant audit had 
been completed. 

 

Each individual report was considered and, during the discussion, reference was made to 
the following matters – 

 

Arrangements for Safeguarding Children and Adults - Field Workers' Awareness of 
the Corporate Policy 

 

 A member noted her concern that although 76% of staff from the sample of 63 were aware 
that the Council had Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults Policy and Guidelines, 
some of the responses from staff had indicated that they were not aware of the contents or 
the background of the policy. She added that there was a need to ensure that staff received 
instructions in relation to safeguarding arrangements and that a training procedure should 
be in place.  
 

In response to the member's observations, the Audit Manager noted that the highest 
awareness of the safeguarding policy was amongst the highway depots staff and that the 
Highways and Municipal Department had worked hard to raise awareness of the policy and 
its content.  
 

A member noted that the Care Scrutiny Committee should be asked to consider the matter 
as it was a high risk. In response, the Senior Manager - Revenue and Risk noted that the 
matter did not apply to Social Services alone, it was a matter for all Council staff. He 
explained that the Audit and Governance Committee did not have ownership of any risk but 
the Committee needed to satisfy itself that arrangements were in place to mitigate the risk. It 
was noted that the Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults Operational Panel could 
be asked to notify Council Department representatives of the gaps in awareness of the 
policy. 
 

The Audit Manager reiterated the above observations and noted that the Safeguarding 
Children and Vulnerable Adults Operational Panel had given considerable attention to 
Council staff's awareness of the safeguarding policy. She explained that the Safeguarding 
Children and Adults Strategic Panel oversaw the Operational Panel. 
 

A member noted that the matter should be referred for discussion by others or it should be 
discussed at a meeting of the Controls Improvement Working Group as the Committee had 
identified it as a risk.   
 

A member noted that the audit mostly pointed to the lack of training and the matter could be 
discussed at the Cabinet Members' performance challenging meetings. In response, the 
Audit Manager noted that training statistics were discussed at every meeting of the 
Operational Panel.  

Page 9



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 8/02/18 

The Audit Manager suggested that the Chair of the Operational Panel could be invited to 
attend a meeting of the Controls Improvement Working Group in the future to provide details 
on the work programme. 

 

RESOLVED: 
(i) to accept the report on the work of Internal Audit for the period of 18 November 

2017 to 26 March 2018 and to support the agreed actions that have already been 
submitted to the managers of the relevant services; 

(ii) that the Chair of the Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults Operational 
Panel should attend a meeting of the Controls Improvement Working Group in 
the future to provide details on the work programme. 

 

10. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18 
 

Submitted - the report of the Audit Manager, providing an update on the current situation in 
terms of completing the 2017/18 internal audit plan. 

 
 It was reported that the Internal Audit Unit up to 26 January 2018 had completed 67.24% of 

the plan, and that 39 of the 58 audits in the 2017/18 plan had been released in a finalised 
version. Attention was drawn to amendments to the Plan as a result of the need to prioritise 
audits due to the lack of resources.  

 

RESOLVED to accept and note the contents of the report as an update of progress 
against the 2017/18 audit plan. 

 

11. DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19 
 

 Submitted – the report of the Audit Manager, in which details of the draft plan of the Internal 
Audit Service's work for the 2018/19 financial year were set out for comment and approval 
by the Committee. It was noted that the draft plan had been prepared after a series of 
meetings with Departmental Management Teams or Heads, and the Corporate Risk 
Register had been considered along with each department's own risk register. 

 
 Attention was drawn to the reduced provision for follow-up work in the draft plan as fewer 

hours were needed after a change to the Internal Audit Service's way of working and in 
accordance with the principles of Ffordd Gwynedd.  

 
 In response to an observation by a member regarding the 'North Wales Growth Board' audit 

in terms of the risks to the Council of losing the Wrexham and Flintshire counties to a 
partnership with Mersey Dee rather than being part of a north Wales arrangement, the Audit 
Manager noted that no decisions had been made yet in terms of the Lead Council, but there 
would be risks as with any major projects. The Head of Finance Department added that the 
project was in its initial stages and that officers were aware of the risk and were seeking to 
ensure that the funding would not all go to east Wales. He noted that the Internal Audit 
Service would keep an eye on the matter. 

 
RESOLVED to approve the draft Audit Plan for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 
2019. 

 
  

The meeting commenced at 10:00am and concluded at 12:55pm. 
 
 
 

________________________ 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 10



 

2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 
Audit year: 2017-18 

Date issued: April 2018 

Document reference: 513A2018-19 

 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7a



 

 

This document has been prepared for the internal use of Gwynedd Council as part of work 
performed/to be performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General, the staff of the Wales Audit Office or, where 
applicable, the appointed auditor in relation to any member, director, officer or other employee in their 

individual capacity, or to any third party. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention is 
drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. The 

section 45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public authorities, 
including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor General for 
Wales, the Wales Audit Office and, where applicable, the appointed auditor are relevant third parties. 

Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit 
Office at infoofficer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in Welsh.  

This document was produced by Deloitte LLP and the Wales Audit Office. 
 
 
 

Page 12

mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

2018 Audit Plan  

Summary 4 

Audit of accounts 4 

Performance audit 8  

Certification of grant claims and returns 11 

Fee, audit team and timetable 12 

Future developments to my audit work 14 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – respective responsibilities 16 

Appendix 2 – performance work in last year’s audit outline still in progress 19 

Appendix 3 – other future developments 20 

Appendix 4 – national value-for-money studies 23 

 

Page 13



2018 Audit Plan 

Page 4 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Summary 
1 As your external auditor, my objective is to carry out an audit which discharges my 

statutory duties as Auditor General and fulfils my obligations under the Public Audit 
(Wales) Act 2004, the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure), 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, the Local Government Act 
1999, and the Code of Audit Practice, namely to: 
• examine and certify whether your financial statements are ‘true and fair’; 
• assess whether you have made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources;  
• audit and assess whether you have discharged the duties and met 

requirements of the Measure; and 
• undertake studies to enable me to make recommendations for improving 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness or for improving financial or other 
management arrangements. 

2 The purpose of this plan is to set out my proposed work, when it will be 
undertaken, how much it will cost and who will undertake it. 

3 There have been no limitations imposed on me in planning the scope of this audit.  
4 My responsibilities, along with those of management and those charged with 

governance, are set out in Appendix 1. 

Audit of accounts 
5 It is my responsibility to issue a certificate and report on the financial statements 

which includes an opinion on their ‘truth and fairness’. This provides assurance that 
the accounts: 
• are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error; 
• comply with statutory and other applicable requirements; and 
• comply with all relevant requirements for accounting presentation and 

disclosure. 
6 I also consider whether or not Gwynedd Council has made proper arrangements 

for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and 
report by exception if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with 
requirements. 

7 Appendix 1 sets out my responsibilities in full. 
8 The audit work I undertake to fulfil my responsibilities responds to my assessment 

of risks. This understanding allows me to develop an audit approach which focuses 
on addressing specific risks whilst providing assurance for the financial statements 
as a whole. My audit approach consists of three phases as set out in Exhibit 1. 

  

Page 14



 

Page 5 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Exhibit 1: my audit approach 

My audit approach involves three key stages: planning, execution and finally concluding 
and reporting 

 
 
9 The risks of material misstatement which I consider to be significant and which 

therefore require special audit consideration, are set out in Exhibit 2 along with the 
work I intend to undertake to address them. 

Exhibit 2: financial audit risks 

This table summarises the key financial audit risks identified at the planning stage of the 
audit 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 
Management override of controls 
The risk of management override of 
controls is present in all entities. Due to the 
unpredictable way in which such override 
could occur, it is viewed as a significant risk 
[ISA 240.31-33]. 

My audit team will: 
• test the appropriateness of journal 

entries and other adjustments made 
in preparing the financial statements 
using enhanced data analytics to 
analyse the whole journal population 
for characteristics of interest; 

• perform design and implementation 
testing of controls over journal entries 
and management judgements and 
estimates; 

• review accounting estimates for 
biases including detailed review of 
provisions; and 

• evaluate the rationale for any 
significant transactions outside the 
normal course of business. 

Page 15



 

Page 6 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 
Completeness and cut-off of 
expenditure 
We have identified completeness of 
expenditure as a significant risk as there 
may be an incentive not to record all 
expenditure in order to for the Council to 
report a more favourable year end position. 

My audit team will: 
• perform design and implementation 

testing over the controls in place to 
ensure completeness of 
expenditure; 

• perform focused audit testing in 
relation to the completeness and 
cut-off of expenditure; and 

• complete detailed testing in relation 
to management estimates and 
judgements as set out in the 
management override risk detailed 
above. 

Property valuations 
The Council completes a cyclical full 
valuation process whereby classes of 
assets undergo a full valuation on a five- 
yearly basis, with the valuations being 
completed by internal valuers. 
 
Property valuations by their nature include 
judgements and estimates and with land 
and buildings valuations as at March 2017 
being £288m, changes in judgements and 
estimates can have a material impact on 
the carrying value. 

My team will: 
• complete design and 

implementation testing in relation to 
the property valuation process 
including the identification of 
impairments outside of the valuation 
process; 

• engage with internal valuation 
specialists to assess the 
reasonableness of assumptions 
underpinning the valuation; and 

• trace all valuation movements 
through the financial statements to 
ensure they are fairly stated.  

 
10 I do not seek to obtain absolute assurance on the truth and fairness of the financial 

statements and related notes, but adopt a concept of materiality. My aim is to 
identify material misstatements, that is, those that might result in a reader of the 
accounts being misled. The levels at which I judge such misstatements to be 
material will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee prior to 
completion of the audit. 

11 For reporting purposes, I will treat any misstatements below a ‘trivial’ level (the 
lower of 5% of materiality or £100,000) as not requiring consideration by those 
charged with governance and therefore I will not report them. 

12 My fees are based on the following assumptions:  
• information provided to support the financial statements is timely, to the 

quality expected and has been subject to quality assurance review; 
• appropriate accommodation and facilities are provided to enable my audit 

team to deliver the audit in an efficient manner; 
• all appropriate officials will be available during the audit; 
• you have all the necessary controls and checks in place to enable the 

Responsible Financial Officer to provide all the assurances that I require in 
the Letter of Representation addressed to me; and 

Page 16



 

Page 7 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

• Internal Audit’s planned programme of work is complete and management 
has responded to issues that may have affected the financial statements. 

13 In addition to my responsibilities in respect of the audit of Gwynedd Council’s 
statutory financial statements set out above, I am also required to certify a return to 
the Welsh Government which provides information about Gwynedd Council to 
support preparation of Whole of Government Accounts. 

Statutory audit functions 
14 In addition to the audit of the accounts, I have statutory responsibilities to receive 

questions and objections to the accounts from local electors. These responsibilities 
are set out in the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004: 
• Section 30 Inspection of documents and questions at audit; and  
• Section 31 Right to make objections at audit. 

15 Audit fees will be chargeable for work undertaken in dealing with electors’ 
questions and objections. Because audit work will depend upon the number and 
nature of any questions and objections, it is not possible to estimate an audit fee 
for this work.  

16 If I do receive questions or objections, I will discuss potential audit fees at the time.  

Other financial audit work 
17 I am also responsible for the audit of two joint committees for which the Council is 

the host authority; these are the GwE Joint Committee and the Joint Planning 
Policy Committee. In addition, I am responsible for the four harbours; these are 
Pwllheli, Barmouth, Porthmadog and Aberdyfi for which the Council is the harbour 
authority. I wish to draw your attention to the following risk area I have identified in 
relation to the GwE Joint Committee which is over and above those mandated by 
ISA 240. 

Exhibit 3: financial audit risk 

This table summarises the key financial audit risk identified in relation to the GwE Joint 
Committee 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 
GwE grant income and expenditure 
The committee receives significant grant 
funding, most of which is distributed to local 
authorities and schools. There is a risk that 
the financial statements inappropriately 
include or exclude this grant funding as the 
committee will need to make an 
assessment of whether it is acting as an 
agent or principal body. 

My audit team will seek to understand 
the committee’s recognition policy for 
grant income and expenditure which will 
include a review of whether the 
committee is acting as principal or 
agent. We will perform tests of detail to 
confirm whether recognition criteria have 
been met. 

Page 17



 

Page 8 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Performance audit 
18 I need to balance my existing, new and proposed statutory duties with the need to 

continue to undertake meaningful, risk-based and proportionate audits and 
assessments. In discharging my responsibilities I will continue to seek to strike the 
most appropriate balance and add value by: 
• providing assurance on the governance and stewardship of public money 

and assets; 
• offering insight on the extent to which resources are used wisely in meeting 

people’s needs; and 
• identifying and promoting ways by which the provision of public services may 

be improved. 
19 As it is likely that the anticipated Local Government Wales Bill will propose that the 

Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 no longer applies to councils, I will 
minimise work that focuses on the process of improvement planning.  

20 In recent years I have placed reliance on my work under the Measure to help 
discharge my duty under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 to satisfy myself that 
councils have made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness (value for money) in the use of resources. Given that in the future I 
will be unable to rely on my work under the Measure, in 2018-19, and subsequent 
years, the focus of my local performance audit programmes will be more clearly 
aligned to discharging my Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 duty. 

21 In 2017-18 I undertook my first work under the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015, the Year One Commentary. This work sought to identify how 
public bodies are beginning to respond to the Act and share emerging practice. My 
2018-19 programme will include the first examinations to be carried out under the 
Act. These examinations will assess the extent to which you are applying the 
sustainable development principle when taking steps towards meeting your well-
being objectives.  

22 The Wales Audit Office also undertakes a programme of local government studies. 
This work is included within the Wales Audit Office estimates for funding from the 
Welsh Consolidated Fund and not local fees. Exhibit 4 summarises the present 
position on the current programme of studies. These studies primarily lead to a 
national report augmented by good practice and shared learning outputs rather 
than by local reports. Local findings, where relevant, will be captured in 
improvement assessment work and reported in annual improvement reports 
depending on the timing and the focus of conclusions.  

23 In the spring of 2018 I will also be consulting on my forward programme of studies 
across all sectors and I would welcome views on the areas I should focus my 
national reviews on when the consultation is launched. 

  

Page 18



 

Page 9 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Exhibit 4: local government studies 

During 2017-18, I published two national reports related to local government, and expect 
to publish a third during April 2018. I will also undertake fieldwork for a further three 
reports during the summer and autumn of 2018. 

Study Status 
2016-17 studies 
How local government manages demand Published January 2018 
Improving wellbeing through housing 
adaptations 

Published February 2018 

Strategic commissioning Publish in April 2018 
2017-18 studies 
Services to rural communities Fieldwork – Publish Summer/Autumn 2018 
Use of data Fieldwork – Publish Summer/Autumn 2018 
Integrated care fund Fieldwork February – Publish Autumn 2018 

 
24 Taking all these factors into consideration, my 2018-19 programme of work will 

comprise: 

Exhibit 5: performance audit programme 

My 2018 performance audit programme will include local projects and national studies  

Performance audit programme Brief description 
Improvement audit and assessment work 
including improvement planning and 
reporting audit 

Audit of discharge of duty to publish an 
improvement plan, and to publish an 
assessment of performance. 

Well-being of Future Generations Act 
(Wales) 2015 (WFG Act) examinations 

Examination of the extent to which the 
Council has acted in accordance with 
the sustainable development principle 
when taking steps to meet one or more 
of its wellbeing objective – which we will 
discuss and agree with the Council 
during early 2018-19. 

Assurance and Risk Assessment  Project to identify the level of audit 
assurance and/or where further audit 
work may be required in future years in 
relation to risks to the Council putting in 
place proper arrangements to secure 
value for money in the use of resources.  

Page 19



 

Page 10 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Performance audit programme Brief description 
Leisure Services Review of the arrangements the council 

has put in place to deliver leisure 
services building on the study previously 
undertaken by the Auditor General as 
part of the ‘delivering with less’ themed 
studies. 

Corporate Safeguarding Arrangements Review of the effectiveness of corporate 
safeguarding arrangements building on 
the study previously undertaken by the 
Auditor General in this area.  

2018-19 Local Government Studies Funded by the Welsh Government 
Implementation of the Social Services and 
Well-being Act 

The Social Services and Well-being 
(Wales) Act 2014 focuses on reforming 
and simplifying the law relating to social 
services. The Act introduced new duties 
for local authorities, local health boards 
and other public bodies and covers 
adults, children and their carers, and 
came into force on 6 April 2016. The 
study will review progress by authorities 
in delivering their new duties under the 
Act and help to identify opportunities for 
improving current management and 
delivery arrangements. Further 
information can be found in our call for 
evidence report published in August 
2017. 

Implementation of Violence against 
Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence (Wales) Act 2015 

The Violence against Women, Domestic 
Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 
2015 aims to improve the Public Sector 
response to violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence; 
provide a strategic focus on these 
issues; and ensure consistent 
consideration of preventive, protective 
and supportive mechanisms in the 
delivery of services. Our review will 
focus on the effectiveness of 
arrangements to improve support for 
people affected by such abuse and 
violence. Further information can be 
found in our call for evidence report 
published in August 2017. 

Page 20

http://www.audit.wales/publication/findings-our-call-evidence-social-services-and-wellbeing-wales-act-2014
http://www.audit.wales/publication/findings-our-call-evidence-social-services-and-wellbeing-wales-act-2014
http://www.audit.wales/publication/findings-our-call-evidence-violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence


 

Page 11 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Performance audit programme Brief description 
Value for Money of Planning Services The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (the Act) 

gained Royal Assent on 6 July 2015. 
The Act sets out a series of legislative 
changes to deliver reform of the 
planning system in Wales, to ensure that 
it is fair, resilient and enables 
development. An effective planning 
service will be at the front of shaping the 
character, development and prosperity 
of a local authority or national park. 
Given the requirements of the Act, it is 
important that planning authorities 
ensure that their services are fit for the 
future to ensure they meet both their 
statutory responsibilities but also 
support the delivery of corporate, 
regional and national priorities. Our 
review will consider the effectiveness 
and impact of planning services on local 
communities in Wales. Further 
information can be found in our call for 
evidence report published in August 
2017. 

 
25 The performance audit projects included in last year’s Audit Plan, which are either 

still underway or which have been substituted for alternative projects in agreement 
with you, are set out in Appendix 2. 

Certification of grant claims and returns 
26 I have been requested to undertake certification work on Gwynedd Council’s grant 

claims and returns as set out in Appendix 3. Details there are provided on our 
expectation that the Welsh Government will streamline its assurance arrangements 
by rolling out the ‘Summary Schedule of Certified Welsh Government Grants’ to all 
unitaries. This follows successful piloting at four authorities last year. This means 
that there should only be a small number of claims and returns which remain to be 
certified in the ‘traditional’ way.  

27 For this year, the Welsh Government will not require me to provide any report of 
factual findings related to any activity levels or outcomes. 

28 My audit fee for this work is set out in Exhibit 6.  
 
  

Page 21

http://www.audit.wales/publication/findings-our-call-evidence-planning-services
http://www.audit.wales/publication/findings-our-call-evidence-planning-services


 

Page 12 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Fee, audit team and timetable 

Fee 
29 Your estimated fee for 2018 is set out in Exhibit 6.  

Exhibit 6: audit fee 

The total audit fee will be £392,687, made up of £180,450 for the audit of accounts, 
£99,537 for performance audit work, £100,000 (estimated) for certification of grant claims 
and returns and £12,700 for other financial audit work. 

Audit area Proposed fee (£)1 Actual fee last year (£) 

Audit of accounts2 180,450 180,450 
Audit of GwE accounts2 11,000 11,000 
Audit of Joint Committees2 1,700 1,700 
Performance audit work3 99,537 99,537 
Grant certification work4 100,000 125,000 
Total fee 392,687 417,687 

Notes: 
1 The fees shown in this document are exclusive of VAT, which is no longer charged to you. 
2 Payable November 2017 to October 2018. 
3 Payable April 2018 to March 2019. 
4 Payable as work is undertaken. This is an estimated fee and has reduced from the prior 
year due to the introduction of changes to grant certification. 

30 Planning will be ongoing, and changes to my programme of audit work and 
therefore my fee, may be required if any key new risks emerge. I shall make no 
changes without first discussing them with the Council. 

31 Further information on my fee scales and fee setting can be found on the  
Wales Audit Office website. 

Audit team 
32 The main members of my team, together with their contact details, are summarised 

in Exhibit 7. 
  

 

 

Page 22

http://www.audit.wales/about-us/fee-scales-and-fee-setting


 

Page 13 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Exhibit 7: my team 

This table provides contact details for the audit team 

Name Role Contact number E-mail address 
Derwyn Owen  Engagement Director 02920 320651  derwyn.owen@audit.wales 

Ian Howse  Engagement Lead – 
Financial Audit 

02920 264319  ihowse@deloitte.co.uk  

Lauren Parsons Financial Audit Manager 07771 335323 laurparsons@deloitte.co.uk 

Huw Rees Engagement Lead – 
Performance Audit 

02920 320599 huw.rees@audit.wales 

Jeremy Evans Performance Audit 
Manager 

07825 052861 jeremy.evans@audit.wales 

Paul Goodlad Performance Audit Lead 07854 108620 paul.goodlad@audit.wales 

 
33 I can confirm that my team members are all independent of Gwynedd Council and 

your officers. In addition, I am not aware of any potential conflicts of interest that I 
need to bring to your attention. 

Timetable 
34 I will provide reports, or other outputs as agreed, to Gwynedd Council covering the 

areas of work identified in this document. My key milestones are set out in  
Exhibit 8. 

Exhibit 8: timetable 

This table sets out my proposed timetable for completion and reporting of my audit work 
at the authority 

Planned output Work undertaken Report finalised 
2018 Audit Plan January to April 2018 April 2018 

Financial accounts work: 
• Audit of Financial Statements 

Report 
• Opinion on Financial Statements 
• Financial Accounts Memorandum 

 
February to 
September 2018 

 
September 2018 
 
September 2018 
October 2018 

Annual Audit Report May to November 
2018 

November 2018 

Page 23

mailto:derwyn.owen@audit.wales
mailto:ihowse@deloitte.co.uk
mailto:laurparsons@deloitte.co.uk
mailto:huw.rees@audit.wales
mailto:jeremy.evans@audit.wales
mailto:paul.goodlad@audit.wales


 

Page 14 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Planned output Work undertaken Report finalised 
Performance work: 
• Improvement Plan Audit 
• Assessment of Performance Audit 
 
• Assurance and Risk Assessment  

 
 
 

• WFG Act Examinations 
 

• Thematics and associated work  

 
April 2018 
November 2018 
 
November 2018 to 
February 2019 
 
 
November 2018 to 
February 2019 
May 2018 to 
February 2019 

 
May 2018 
December 2018 
 
No report: it informs 
2018-19 audit work and 
the 2019 Audit Plan 
 
March 2019 
 
March 2019 

Annual Improvement Report  April 2018 – May 
2019 

June 2019 

2019 Audit Plan December 2018 to 
February 2019 

March 2019 

* Subject to timely clearance of draft findings with Gwynedd Council. 

Future developments to my audit work 
35 Details of future developments including changes to key International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) and of the Wales Audit Office’s Good Practice 
Exchange (GPX) seminars are set out in Appendix 4.  

36 The Wales Audit Office’s GPX programme seeks to support the improvement of 
public services across Wales by identifying and sharing good practice. The GPX 
seminars bring a range of public sector bodies together to share their practical 
experiences and learning in areas we consider would benefit from sharing good 
practice. The seminars are provided free of charge to delegates. Forthcoming 
events include: 
• Sustainable Procurement. Focused upon how to create a mind-set that 

supports sustainable procurement in relation to the WFG Act  
• Measuring Outcomes. Supporting the WFG Act, 44 bodies shift their focus 

from outputs to outcomes and impact 
• Adverse Childhood Experiences. In partnership with ACE’s Hub at Public 

Health Wales and the Future Generations Office 
• Digital Seminar, taking account of the Wales Audit Office ‘Using Data 

Effectively’ study. Working in partnership with The Information 
Commissioners Office and Y Lab 

• Building Resilient Communities. Focussing on renewable energy, 
community skills, Welsh Language, housing and economy and Public Health 
Wales  

Page 24



 

Page 15 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

• Partnership working between Voluntary bodies and Public Sector 
Bodies. Will also include the launch of the Good Practice Guide to Grants 
Management. 

• Financial Audit – Early Closure of Local Government Accounts. 
Focussing on cultural and behaviour changes 

• Alternative Service Delivery Models. In partnership with WLGA, WCVA, 
Community Housing Cymru, Welsh NHS Confederation, and Good Practice 
Wales 

• Cybersecurity. Focusing on governance arrangements 
• Preventing Hospital Admissions. Jointly with NHS, Social Care, Housing 

and partners from the Third Sector 
• Youth. Following thematic reports from Estyn, CSSIW, HIW and the Wales 

Audit Office on the topic of youth. The GPX team will follow on with a 
seminar to share the learning 

Page 25



Appendix 1 

Page 16 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Respective responsibilities 

Audit of accounts 
As amended by the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2013, the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 
sets out my powers and duties to undertake your financial audit. It is my responsibility to 
issue a certificate and report on the financial statements which includes an opinion on: 
• their ‘truth and fairness’, providing assurance that they: 

‒ are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error; 
‒ comply with the statutory and other applicable requirements; and 
‒ comply with all relevant requirements for accounting presentation and 

disclosure. 
• the consistency of information in the Annual Report with the financial statements. 
I must also state by exception if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with 
requirements, if proper accounting records have not been kept, if disclosures required for 
remuneration and other transactions have not been made or if I have not received all the 
information and explanations I require. 
The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me to assess whether Gwynedd Council has 
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources. To achieve this, I consider: 
• the results of the audit work undertaken on the financial statements; 
• Gwynedd Council’s system of internal control, as reported in the Annual 

Governance Statement and my report thereon; 
• the results of other work carried out including work carried out under the Local 

Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure), certification of claims and 
returns, and data-matching exercises;  

• the results of the work of other external review bodies where relevant to my 
responsibilities; and  

• any other work that addresses matters not covered by the above, and which I 
consider necessary to discharge my responsibilities. 

The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 sets out the rights of the public and electors to inspect 
Gwynedd Council’s financial statements and related documents, to ask me, as the 
Appointed Auditor questions about the accounts and, where appropriate, to challenge 
items in the accounts. I must also consider whether in the public interest, I should make a 
report on any matter which comes to my notice in the course of the audit. 
My audit work does not relieve management and those charged with governance of their 
responsibilities which include: 
• the preparation of the financial statements and Annual Report in accordance with 

applicable accounting standards and guidance; 

Page 26



 

Page 17 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

• the keeping of proper accounting records; 
• ensuring the regularity of financial transactions; and 
• securing value for money in the use of resources. 
Management agrees to provide me with: 
• access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 

preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other 
matters; 

• additional information that I may request from management for the purpose of the 
audit; and 

• unrestricted access to persons within Gwynedd Council from whom I determine it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Management will need to provide me with written representations to confirm: 
• that it has fulfilled its responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements; 
• that all transactions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial 

statements; 
• the completeness of the information provided to me for the purposes of the audit; 

and 
• to support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements or specific 

assertions in the financial statements if I deem it necessary or if required by ISAs. 

Performance audit 
The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me, by examination of the accounts or 
otherwise, to satisfy myself that the body has made proper arrangements for: 
• securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources; and 
• that the body, if required to publish information in pursuance of a direction under 

section 47 (performance information) has made such arrangements for collecting 
and recording the information and for publishing it as are required for the 
performance of its duties under that section. 

The Measure places a general duty on improvement authorities to ‘make arrangements to 
secure continuous improvement in the exercise of [their] functions’. It also places specific 
requirements on authorities to set improvement objectives, and to publish annual 
improvement plans and assessments of performance. Improvement authorities are 
defined as county and county borough councils, national park authorities, and fire and 
rescue authorities. 
The Measure also requires me to carry out an improvement assessment for each 
improvement authority every year, to determine whether the authority is likely to comply 
with its general duty and requirements of the Measure. I must also carry out an audit of 
whether the authority has discharged its improvement planning and reporting duties. 
The Auditor General may also in some circumstances carry out special inspections 
(under section 21), in respect of which he will provide a report to the relevant authorities 

Page 27



 

Page 18 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

and Ministers, and which he may publish (under section 22). The Auditor General will 
summarise audit and assessment reports in his published Annual Improvement Report 
(under section 24). This will also summarise any reports of special inspections. 
 
Section 15 of the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 requires me to carry 
out examinations of public bodies for the purposes of assessing the extent to which it has 
acted in accordance with the sustainable development principle when: 
(a) setting well-being objectives; and  
(b) taking steps to meet those objectives. 
I must carry out such an examination of each public body at least once during a five-year 
period. Before the end of the period I must report on the results of those examinations to 
the National Assembly. 
 

Page 28



Appendix 2 

Page 19 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Performance work in last year’s audit outline still 
in progress 

Exhibit 9: performance work in last year’s audit outline still in progress 

Five pieces of local risk-based performance audit work included in last year’s audit plan 
remain outstanding. 

Performance audit project Status Comment 
Scrutiny – Fit for the Future? Report clearance Published May 2018 
Service User Perspective 
review (Gwynedd Libraries) 

Report clearance Published May 2018 

Review of the HR 
Information System 

Report drafting Published April / May 2018 

Follow-up of national 
proposals for improvement  

Project brief to 
Council April 2018 

Published May 2018 

Annual Improvement Report Draft to Council 
May 2018 

Published May 2018 

 
 

Page 29



Appendix 3 

Page 20 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Other future developments 

Forthcoming key IFRS changes  

Exhibit 10: forthcoming key IFRS changes 

There are three key changes to accounting rules that will impact on the authority over the 
next three years. 

Standard Effective 
date 

Further details 

IFRS 9 
Financial 
instruments 

2018-19 IFRS 9 financial instruments will replace IAS 39 and 
includes a new principles-based approach for the 
classification and measurement of financial assets.  
It also introduces a new impairment methodology for 
financial assets based on expected losses rather 
than incurred losses. This will result in earlier and 
more timely recognition of expected credit losses. 
The accounting requirements for financial liabilities 
are almost all carried forward unchanged from  
IAS 39. 

IFRS 15 
Revenue from 
contracts with 
customers 

2018-19 IFRS 15 revenue from contracts with customers 
introduces a principles-based five-step model for 
recognising revenue arising from contracts with 
customers. It is based on a core principle requiring 
revenue recognition to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to the customer in an 
amount that reflects the consideration the body 
expects to be entitled to, in exchange for those 
goods or services. It will also require more extensive 
disclosures than are currently required. 

IFRS 16 Leases 2019-20 IFRS 16 will replace the current leases standard IAS 
17. The key change is that it largely removes the 
distinction between operating and finance leases for 
lessees by introducing a single lessee accounting 
model that requires a lessee to recognise assets and 
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. 
It will lead to all leases being recognised on the 
balance sheet as an asset based on a ‘right of use’ 
principle with a corresponding liability for future 
rentals. This is a significant change in lessee 
accounting. 

  

Page 30



 

Page 21 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 
The GDPR is a new data protection law for the whole of the EU applicable from 25 May 
2018, which has the intention of harmonising and updating data protection laws. The UK 
Government has introduced the Data Protection Bill which will incorporate the GDPR into 
UK law and replace the 1998 Data Protection Act, and which it intends will also come into 
force on 25 May 2018. 
The GDPR introduces new requirements for personal data processing, including an 
accountability principle which will require more detailed records of the processing of 
personal data, evidence of compliance with the data protection principles and the 
technical and organisational security measures taken to protect the data. We are 
updating our own policies, processes and documentation with a view to meeting these 
requirements and expect that the bodies we audit will be taking similar steps. Key areas 
of additional work include the use of more detailed fair processing notices, more privacy 
impact assessments and more extensive record keeping in relation to processing 
activities. 

Wales Pension Partnership 
The administering authorities for the eight Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
funds in Wales have established a pension investment pool in line with government 
requirements. The Wales Pension Partnership Joint Governance Committee will, from 
April 2018 onwards, oversee the pooling of some £15 billion of investments from the eight 
LGPS funds in Wales.  
The relevant authorities need to be fully engaged in this process to ensure that 
appropriate arrangements are put in place that meet their requirements and to achieve 
the benefits of pooling which include economies of scale and reduced costs. 

Good Practice Exchange 
The Wales Audit Office’s Good Practice Exchange (GPX) helps public services improve 
by sharing knowledge and practices that work. Events are held where knowledge can be 
exchanged face-to-face and resources shared online.  

Exhibit 11: planned forthcoming GPX webinars and Seminars. 

My planned GPX programme includes 11 subject areas  

Date Format Topic 
April 2018 Webinar Sustainable Procurement. Focused upon how to create a mind-set 

that supports sustainable procurement in relation to the WFG Act. 

May 2018 Webinar Measuring Outcomes. Supporting the WFG Act 44 bodies shift their 
focus from outputs to outcomes and impact. 

Page 31



 

Page 22 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Date Format Topic 
June 2018 Seminar Adverse Childhood Experiences. In partnership with ACE’s Hub at 

Public Health Wales and the Future Generations Office. 
June 2018 Seminar Digital. Seminar, taking account of the Wales Audit Office ‘Using 

Data Effectively’ study. Working in partnership with The Information 
Commissioners Office and Y Lab. 

July 2018 Seminar Building Resilient Communities. Focussing on renewable energy, 
community skills, Welsh Language, housing and economy and Public 
Health Wales. 

September 
2018 

Seminar Partnership working between Voluntary bodies and Public 
Sector Bodies. Will also include the launch of the Good Practice 
Guide to Grants Management. 

October 
2018 

Webinar Financial Audit – Early Closure of Local Government Accounts. 
Focussing on cultural and behaviour changes. 

December 
2018 

Seminar Alternative Service Delivery Models. In partnership with WLGA, 
WCVA, Community Housing Cymru, Welsh NHS Confederation and 
Good Practice Wales. 

January 
2019 

Webinar Cybersecurity. Focusing on governance arrangements. 

February 
2019 

Seminar Preventing Hospital Admissions. Jointly with NHS, Social Care, 
Housing and partners from the Third Sector. 

March 
2019 

Seminar Youth. Following thematic reports from Estyn, CSSIW, HIW and the 
Wales Audit Office on the topic of youth. The GPX team will follow on 
with a seminar to share the learning. 

 
 

Page 32



Appendix 4 

Page 23 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

National value-for-money studies 
The Council may also be interested in the national value-for-money examinations that I 
undertake, some of which will be of particular relevance to, and may involve evidence 
gathering across, local government. These studies are supported by funds approved by 
the National Assembly. Reports are presented to the National Assembly’s Public 
Accounts Committee to support its scrutiny of public expenditure and potentially support 
scrutiny by other National Assembly committees.  
Exhibit 12 covers all of the value-for-money studies work currently programmed. The 
programme includes all-Wales summaries of audit work undertaken locally in the NHS 
and reactive examinations into specific issues of public concern that have been raised 
with me. In addition to the work outlined below, I may decide during the year to prepare 
other national reports summarising local audit work, follow-up work, or based on the 
findings of other reactive examinations. 
Further updates on my programme of value-for-money studies will be provided to you 
within the regular progress reports prepared by my team. 

Exhibit 12: national value-for-money studies 

Topic Anticipated publication (as at 12 April 2018) 
Primary care services2 Spring 2018 
Access to public services with the support 
of specialist interpretation and translation 

Spring 2018 

Waste management (waste prevention) 
Waste management (municipal recycling) 
Waste management (procurement of 
infrastructure) 

Spring / Summer 2018 

Early intervention and public behaviour 
change3 

Spring 2018 

GP out-of-hours services – national 
summary report 

Spring 2018 

Rural Development Programme 2014-
2020 

Spring 2018 

Business finance Spring 2018 

 
2 An initial data rich report presenting a ‘picture of primary care’ in advance of further local 
audit work. 
3 Following on from some good practice work, we are planning to produce a short 
summary paper to highlight some of the issues raised and evidence gathered through 
that work, supported by a series of podcasts. 

Page 33



 

Page 24 of 26 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council 

Topic Anticipated publication (as at 12 April 2018) 
NHS agency staffing costs4 Summer 2018 
EU Structural Funds programmes  
2014-2020 

Summer 2018 

Improving the wellbeing of young people Winter 2018 
Radiology services – national summary To be confirmed 
Integrated Care Fund To be confirmed 
Care experienced by children and young 
people5 

To be confirmed 

 
 
 
 
 

 
4 Work has recently commenced on gathering data from across the health services of the 
UK to support a paper on the various approaches being taken to address the increasing 
costs of employing agency medical and nursing staff within the NHS. The precise format 
for this output is still to be determined. 
5 The PAC has now set out its initial plans for some ongoing inquiry work on this topic. I 
will be supporting this work, although the precise nature of, and timescale for, any 
additional audit-related outputs is still to be determined. 

Page 34

http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?id=273&RPID=1024151&cp=yes


Page 35



 

 

Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 
Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone.: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 
Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 
24 Heol y Gadeirlan 
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 
Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

 

Page 36

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


 

2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension 
Fund 

Audit year: 2017-18 

Date issued: 1 May 2018 

Document reference: 550A2018-19 

This document is a draft version pending further discussions with 
the audited and inspected body. Information may not yet have 
been fully verified and should not be widely distributed. 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7b



 

 

This document has been prepared for the internal use of Gwynedd Council as part of work 

performed/to be performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General, the staff of the Wales Audit Office or auditors acting 

on behalf of the Auditor General in relation to any member, director, officer or other employee in their 

individual capacity, or to any third party. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention is 

drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. The 

section 45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public authorities, 

including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor General for 

Wales, the Wales Audit Office and, where applicable, the appointed auditor are relevant third parties. 

Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit 

Office at infoofficer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 

not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in Welsh.  

This document was produced by the Gwynedd Pension Fund auditors, Deloitte LLP. 

 

 

Page 40

mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

2018 Audit Plan 

Summary 4 

Audit of Pension Fund accounts 4 

Fee, audit team and timetable 6 

Future developments 8 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – respective responsibilities 9 

Appendix 2 – other future developments 10 

 

Page 41



2018 Audit Plan 

Page 4 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Summary 

1 As your external auditor, my objective is to carry out an audit which discharges my 

statutory duties as Auditor General and fulfils my obligations under the Code of 

Audit Practice to examine and certify whether Gwynedd Pension Fund (the 

Pension Fund) accounting statements are ‘true and fair’. 

2 The purpose of this plan is to set out my proposed work, when it will be 

undertaken, how much it will cost and who will undertake it. 

3 There have been no limitations imposed on me in planning the scope of this audit.  

4 My responsibilities, along with those of management and those charged with 

governance, are set out in Appendix 1. 

Audit of Pension Fund accounts 

5 It is my responsibility to issue a report on the accounting statements which includes 

an opinion on their ‘truth and fairness’. This provides assurance that the accounts: 

 are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error; 

 comply with statutory and other applicable requirements; and 

 comply with all relevant requirements for accounting presentation and 

disclosure.  

Appendix 1 sets out my responsibilities in full. 

6 The audit work I undertake to fulfil my responsibilities responds to my assessment 

of risks. This understanding allows us to develop an audit approach which focuses 

on addressing specific risks whilst providing assurance for the Pension Fund 

accounts as a whole. My audit approach consists of three phases as set out in 

Exhibit 1. 

Exhibit 1: my audit approach 

 

 

7 The risk of material misstatement which I consider to be significant and which 

therefore requires special audit consideration, is set out in Exhibit 2 along with the 

Page 42



 

Page 5 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

work I intend to undertake to address it. In the prior year, I considered there to be a 

significant risk of material misstatement in respect of the valuation of private equity 

investments. I do not consider this risk of material misstatement to be significant in 

the current year as audited financial statements are available for each of the funds 

held and no errors were identified as a result of prior year testing.  

Exhibit 2: financial audit risks 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 

Management Override of Controls 

The risk of management override of 

controls is present in all entities. Due to 

the unpredictable way in which such 

override could occur, it is viewed as a 

significant risk [ISA 240.31-33]. 

              

 

 

My audit team will: 

 test the appropriateness of journal 

entries and other adjustments made 

in preparing the financial statements 

using enhanced data analytics to 

analyse the whole journal population 

for characteristics of interest; 

 review the design and implementation 

of controls over journal entries to the 

financial ledger and accounting 

estimates; 

 review accounting estimates for 

biases; and 

 evaluate the rationale for any 

significant transactions outside the 

normal course of business.   

 

8 I do not seek to obtain absolute assurance that the Pension Fund accounting 

statements are true and fair, but adopt a concept of materiality. My aim is to 

identify material misstatements, that is, those that might result in a reader of the 

accounts being misled. The levels at which I judge such misstatements to be 

material will be reported to the Pension Committee, Pension Board and to those 

charged with governance for Gwynedd Council (the Council), as the administering 

authority of the Pension Fund as a whole, prior to completion of the audit. 

Materiality, based on net assets, has been set provisionally at £18,600,000 (using 

net asset values as of 31 March 2017). This will be reviewed at final audit.  

9 For reporting purposes, I will treat any misstatements below a trivial level (set at 

5% of materiality, £930,000) as not requiring consideration by those charged with 

governance and therefore I will not report them. 

  

Page 43



 

Page 6 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

10 My fees are based on the following assumptions: 

 information provided to support the financial statements is timely, to the 

quality expected and has been subject to quality assurance review; 

 appropriate accommodation and facilities are provided to enable my audit 

team to deliver my audit in an efficient manner; 

 all appropriate officials will be available during the audit; and 

 you have all the necessary controls and checks in place to enable the 

Responsible Financial Officer to provide all the assurances that I require in 

the Letter of Representation addressed to me. 

Statutory audit functions 

11 In addition to the audit of the accounts, I have statutory responsibilities to receive 

questions and objections to the accounts from local electors. These responsibilities 

are set out in the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004: 

 Section 30 Inspection of documents and questions at audit; and  

 Section 31 Right to make objections at audit. 

12 Audit fees will be chargeable for work undertaken in dealing with electors’ 

questions and objections. Because audit work will depend upon the number and 

nature of any questions and objections, it is not possible to estimate an audit fee 

for this work.  

13 If I do receive questions or objections, I will discuss potential audit fees at the time.  

Fee, audit team and timetable 

Fee 

14 Your estimated fee for 2018 is set out in Exhibit 3. This figure remains the same as 

the fee set out in the 2017 audit plan. 

  

Page 44



 

Page 7 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Exhibit 3: audit fee 

Audit area Proposed fee for 2018 

(£) 

Actual fee for 2017 

(£) 

Audit of pension fund accounts1 34,200 34,200 

1 The fees shown in this document are exclusive of VAT, which is no longer charged to 

you. 

15 Planning will be ongoing, and changes to my programme of audit work and 

therefore my fee, may be required if any key new risks emerge. I shall make no 

changes without first discussing them with the Director of Finance. 

16 Further information on my fee scales and fee setting can be found on the Wales 

Audit Office website. 

Audit team 

17 The main members of my team, together with their contact details, are summarised 

in Exhibit 4. 

Exhibit 4: my team 

Name Role Contact number E-mail address 

Andy Fern Engagement Lead – 

Financial Audit 

01216968981 anfern@deloitte.co.

uk  

Sam Roden Financial Audit Manager 01216955148 sroden@deloitte.co

.uk  

 

18 I can confirm that my team members are all independent of the Pension Fund and 

its officers. In addition, I am not aware of any potential conflicts of interest that I 

need to bring to your attention. 

Timetable 

19 I will provide reports, or other outputs as agreed, to the Pension Committee, 

Pension Board and Gwynedd Council Audit Committee, covering the areas of work 

identified in this document. My key milestones are set out in Exhibit 5. 

 

 

 

 

Page 45

http://www.audit.wales/about-us/fee-scales-and-fee-setting
mailto:anfern@deloitte.co.uk
mailto:anfern@deloitte.co.uk
mailto:sroden@deloitte.co.uk
mailto:sroden@deloitte.co.uk


 

Page 8 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Exhibit 5: timetable 

Planned output Work undertaken Report finalised 

2018 Audit Plan March – April 2018 May 2018 

Financial accounts work: 

 Audit of Financial Statements 

Report 

 Opinion on Financial Statements 

 

June – July 2018 

 

September 2018 

 

2019 Audit Plan January – March 

2019 

January 2019 

Future developments 

Other 

20 Details of other future developments including changes to key International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and of the Wales Audit Office’s Good 

Practice Exchange (GPX) seminars are set out in Appendix 2.  

21 The Wales Audit Office’s GPX programme seeks to support the improvement of 

public services across Wales by identifying and sharing good practice. The GPX 

seminars bring a range of public sector bodies together to share their practical 

experiences and learning in areas we consider would benefit from sharing good 

practice. The seminars are provided free of charge to delegates. 

Page 46



Appendix 1 

Page 9 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Respective responsibilities 

The Council is the administering authority of the Pension Fund. This Audit Plan has been 

prepared to meet the requirements of auditing standards and proper audit practices. It 

provides the Council with an outline of the financial audit work required for the Pension 

Fund accounts. 

As amended by the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2013, the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 

sets out my powers and duties to undertake your financial audit. It is my responsibility to 

issue a certificate and report on the Pension Fund accounting statements which includes 

an opinion on their ‘truth and fairness’, providing assurance that they: 

 are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error; 

 comply with the statutory and other applicable requirements; and 

 comply with all relevant requirements for accounting presentation and disclosure. 

My audit work does not relieve management and those charged with governance of their 

responsibilities which include: 

 the preparation of the financial statements and Annual Report in accordance with 

applicable accounting standards and guidance; 

 the keeping of proper accounting records; 

 ensuring the regularity of financial transactions; and 

 securing value for money in the use of resources. 

Management agrees to provide me with: 

 access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 

preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other 

matters; 

 additional information that I may request from management for the purpose of the 

audit; and 

 unrestricted access to persons within the authority from whom I determine it 

necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Management will need to provide me with written representations to confirm: 

 that it has fulfilled its responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements; 

 that all transactions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial 

statements; 

 the completeness of the information provided to me for the purposes of the audit; 

and 

 to support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements or specific 

assertions in the financial statements if I deem it necessary or if required by ISAs. 

Page 47



Appendix 2 

Page 10 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Other future developments 

Forthcoming IFRS changes 

Exhibit 6: forthcoming IFRS changes 

Standard Effective date Further details 

IFRS 9 financial 

instruments 

2018-19 IFRS 9 financial instruments will replace IAS 39 

and includes a new principles-based approach 

for the classification and measurement of 

financial assets. It also introduces a new 

impairment methodology for financial assets 

based on expected losses rather than incurred 

losses. This will result in earlier and more timely 

recognition of expected credit losses. The 

accounting requirements for financial liabilities 

are almost all carried forward unchanged from 

IAS 39.  

  

Page 48



 

Page 11 of 12 - 2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 

The GDPR is a new data protection law for the whole of the EU applicable from 25 May 

2018, which has the intention of harmonising and updating data protection laws. The UK 

Government has introduced the Data Protection Bill which will incorporate the GDPR into 

UK law and replace the 1998 Data Protection Act, and which it intends will also come into 

force on 25 May 2018. 

The GDPR introduces new requirements for personal data processing, including an 

accountability principle which will require more detailed records of the processing of 

personal data, evidence of compliance with the data protection principles and the 

technical and organisational security measures taken to protect the data. We are 

updating our own policies, processes and documentation with a view to meeting these 

requirements and expect that the bodies we audit will be taking similar steps. Key areas 

of additional work include the use of more detailed fair processing notices, more privacy 

impact assessments and more extensive record keeping in relation to processing 

activities. 

Good Practice Exchange 

The Wales Audit Office’s Good Practice Exchange (GPX) helps public services improve 

by sharing knowledge and practices that work. Events are held where knowledge can be 

exchanged face to face and resources shared online. 

The focus of GPX events include financial management, public sector staff and 

governance. Further information, including details of forthcoming GPX events and outputs 

from past seminars, can be found on the GPX section of the Wales Audit Office website. 

 

Page 49

http://www.audit.wales/good-practice


 

 

Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 

Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone.: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 

Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 

24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

 

Page 50

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


COMMITTEE   AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
DATE    10 MAY 2018  
 
TITLE OUTPUT OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT SECTION 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT TO OUTLINE THE WORK OF INTERNAL AUDIT FOR THE PERIOD 

TO 31 MARCH 2018  
 
AUTHOR LUNED FÔN JONES – AUDIT MANAGER 
 
ACTION TO RECEIVE THE REPORT, COMMENT ON THE CONTENTS AND 

SUPPORT THE ACTIONS THAT HAVE ALREADY BEEN AGREED 
WITH THE RELEVANT SERVICES 

 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The following report summarises the work of the Internal Audit Section for the period 

from 29 January 2018 to 31 March 2018. 
 
2. WORK COMPLETED DURING THE PERIOD 
2.1 The following work was completed in the period to 31 March 2018: 
 

Description Number 
 

Reports on Audits from the Operational Plan 16 

 
 Further details regarding this work are found in the body of this report and in the 

enclosed appendices. 
  

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



2.2 Audit Reports 
2.2.1 The following table shows the audits completed in the period to 31 March 2018, 

indicating the relevant opinion category and a reference to the relevant appendix. 
 

TITLE DEPARTMENT SERVICE OPINION APPENDIX 

Staff Development 
Module 

Corporate - C Appendix 1 

Obtaining References, 
Proof of Identity and 
Evidence of 
Qualifications 

Corporate - C Appendix 2 

School Meals Income Education Schools 
No 

Category 
Appendix 3 

Food Hygiene Environment 
Public 

Protection 
B Appendix 4 

Smallholdings Environment 
Council Land 
and Property 

Ch Appendix 5 

School Schemes – Ysgol 
Glancegin 

Environment 
Council Land 
and Property 

B Appendix 6 

Car Park Income Environment 
Transportation 

and Street 
Care 

B Appendix 7 

Pension Fund – Annual 
Statements 

Finance 
Pensions and 

Payroll 
A Appendix 8 

Benefits – Review of Key 
Controls 

Finance Revenue A Appendix 9 

Storiel – Café 
Management 
Arrangements 

Economy and 
Community 

Record Offices, 
Museums and 

the Arts 

No 
Category 

Appendix 10 

Victoria Dock 
Economy and 
Community 

Maritime and 
Country Parks 

B Appendix 11 

Telecare 
Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Adults A Appendix 12 

Page 52



TITLE DEPARTMENT SERVICE OPINION APPENDIX 

Supported Housing 
Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Residential 
and Day 

C Appendix 13 

Y Frondeg 
Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Residential 
and Day 

No 
Category 

Appendix 14 

Arrangements for 
Children Leaving Care 

Children and 
Family Support 

Children and 
Families 

B Appendix 15 

Recycling Targets 
Highways and 

Municipal 

Waste 
Management 
and Streets 

B Appendix 16 

 
2.2.2 The opinion categories within the reports affirm the following: 

Opinion “A”  Assurance of financial propriety can be expressed as the controls in 
place can be relied upon and have been adhered to. 

 
Opinion “B”  Controls are in place, and partial assurance of financial propriety can 

be expressed as there are aspects where some procedures can be 
strengthened. 

 
Opinion “C”  Assurance of financial propriety cannot be expressed as the controls in 

place cannot be relied upon, but losses/fraud due to these weaknesses 
were not discovered. 

 
Opinion “CH”  Assurance of financial propriety cannot be expressed as acceptable 

internal controls are not in place; losses/fraud resulting from these 
weaknesses were discovered.  

 
 
3. FOLLOW-UP WORK 
3.1 New arrangements have been established for follow-up audits. In 2016/17, a total of 

223 actions were agreed to be undertaken before 31 March 2018. Now, rather than 
carrying out a follow-up on only “C” opinion reports, all agreed actions will be 
addressed by requesting the unit/service/establishment to provide evidence to prove 
implementation. On 31 March 2018, there was acceptable implementation on 90.09% 
of the agreed actions, i.e. 200 out of 222.  One of the agreed actions was no longer 
applicable.  

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
4.1 The Committee is requested to accept this report on the work of the Internal Audit 

Section in the period from 29 January 2018 to 31 March 2018, comment on the 
contents in accordance with members’ wishes, and support the actions agreed with 
the relevant service managers.  

 

Page 53



Appendix 1 
        STAFF DEVELOPMENT MODULE (MoDS) 

CORPORATE 
1. Background 
1.1 As part of the Council’s broader project of combining several Human Resources 

systems within the Staff Self-Service system, the MoDS project was started in order 
to centralize all elements of staff learning and development. The MoDS will collect 
information from the Council Structure System, the Policy Centre and the E-Learning 
Portal and replace the Training Database and the ‘Learning Link’. The project was 
discussed and initial documentation was presented in March 2009, resources 
became available for the project in 2013 but it was not started in its present form 
until 2016 due to the Council’s priorities such as the Self-Service Systems.        

 
2. Scope and Purpose of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that appropriate arrangements were in place 

to properly manage the project and report on its effectiveness. It was also essential 
to ensure that the product achieved what was required in the brief. In order to 
achieve this, the audit encompassed checking documentation relating to the project 
as well as questioning individuals involved in the management and technical 
arrangements of the project.  

 
3. Main Findings 
3.1 A copy of the project brief was received as well as  other documentation regarding 

project management, such as a project application and a ‘backlog’ list. The 
information about the project’s initial objectives and what technical tasks needed to 
be completed and when was complete. There was a lack of evidence of long-term 
planning for the project. It was not part of an official plan but it was expressed in a 
presentation to the project’s stakeholders that the full ‘SIDD (Integrated Learning 
and Development System) would be live by summer 2017’. Schedules/plans were 
seen for periods of three (September – November 2017) and five months (October 
2017 – February 2018) but there was little evidence that the project adhered to the 
timescales or recorded reasoning for its failure to do so. In the September – 
November Schedule, the system was scheduled to be live between the 6th and 17th 
of November. Weekly meetings are now held between the IT officers and the 
Learning and Development Service Officers. At the time of conducting the audit, core 
elements of project management were not in place, such as:  

 Risk and significant matter register – although there was an issue log kept by the 
IT Service, the risks of the project as a whole were unknown, 

 Lessons learnt log,  

 Any Financial monitoring documentation.  
3.2  The Learning and Development Officer and the Training Co-ordinator and Business 

Development Officer emphasized that MoDS is a system for everyone not just the 
Learning and Development Service. It is therefore important for the system to meet 
the needs of each Council department. Overall, MoDS meets a large part of each 
department’s needs with some departments such as YGC and Highways and 
Municipal eager for the launch of the module. Additional features and improvements 
were added following consultation with departments, particularly in relation to CPD. 

Page 54



3.3 Despite the fact that the module will meet the needs of the majority, officials of the 
Workforce Development Unit within the Adults, Health and Wellbeing Department 
explained that many individuals who are not employed by the Council receive 
training from the Council and cannot be registered for staff self-service. 
Arrangements are now in place to enable the recording of training of workers from 
external agencies, however this will be done by the Workforce Development Unit 
from the Adults, Health and Wellbeing Department. No request for this function was 
received at the beginning of the "life" of the project as there was no communication 
with the Adults, Health and Wellbeing Department regarding the project at the time. 
The Support Service have arrangements in place to register the Council's field 
workers on the staff self-service system that will enable access to the MoDS. 

3.4 An external IT consultant was employed through an agency to undertake the project. 
The consultant ceased working with the Council on 17 November 2017. Details were 
extracted from the financial ledger and it was seen that a total of approximately £90k 
excluding VAT had been paid to the agency for the 12 month period. A 6 month 
contract was originally established with two further 3 month extensions. The project 
is funded by the Corporate Support Department. Responsibility for the operational 
development of the project has been transferred back to the Council's IT Service 
following the termination of the external IT Consultant service. It was explained that 
because of the lack of a clear and definitive brief of the needs and direction of the 
project, much of the consultant's time was spent collecting information and details 
rather than focusing on the technical elements. 

3.5 The Internal Audit Service will conduct an audit on the use of the MoDS across the 
Council during the 2019/20 financial year.  

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(C)  Certainty of propriety cannot be expressed regarding the project management of 

the Staff Development Module, as the controls in place cannot be relied upon, but 
losses/fraud due to these weaknesses were not discovered. The project team has 
committed to implementing the following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted: 

 Produce a timetable for MoDS engagement and distribution. 

 Produce a timetable for the last technical steps to get the system live.  

 Produce a risk log and report on project risks to the Project Board. 

 Prepare a log of lessons learned for the project and continue to complete it where 
appropriate until the end of the project. 

 Re-visit the estimated savings figures and monitor the use of the MoDS to obtain 
a rough figure of the true saving. 

 Prepare an engagement strategy and implement it before and during the 
Distribution of the MoDS. 

  

Page 55



Appendix 2 
OBTAINING REFERENCES, PROOF OF IDENTITY AND EVIDENCE OF 

QUALIFICATIONS  
CORPORATE 

 
1. Background  
1.1 The Council's Corporate Recruitment and Selection Policy has been established with 

the main intention of appointing the best officers to Council posts. Appointments 
will not be made if the applicant does not meet the ‘Person Specification’ 
requirements.  

1.2 Part 15 of the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality Act 2006 states that all employers 
in the United Kingdom carry out basic checks of the documents of each individual 
they intend to employ. By doing these checks, the employer can be satisfied that 
they do not breach the law by employing illegal workers. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that Gwynedd Council complied with the 

recruitment and selection arrangements of the Authority's staff in relation to the 
acceptance of references, identity tests and the receiving evidence of qualifications. 

2.2 The audit scope included selecting a sample of new appointments across Council 
departments administered by the Support Service, Corporate Support and ensuring 
sufficient evidence had been received for proof of identity and qualifications as well 
as that appropriate references were received in each case. The audit did not include 
the appointments of the Education Department, Municipal Work Service or the 
Community Care Service as they have their own administration arrangements. 

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 It was found that arrangements were in place but they did not receive the necessary 

attention. Officers have been appointed to administer the arrangements but it is 
essential that all Council officers co-operate with them. 

3.1.1 The correspondence confirming the date and time of the interview notes that it is 
essential that the candidate brings any certificates or evidence of qualifications 
requested in the 'Person Specification' as well as proof of their identity with them to 
the interview. It is the responsibility of the relevant Service Managers to ensure that 
the evidence is appropriate, however, this does not happen in most cases. 

3.1.2 Human Resource Assistants are responsible for requesting references from the 
Referees, they also receive them before presenting them to the relevant Managers. 
In some cases they do not receive references and these need to be followed up which 
may be troublesome. If a period passes without receiving a reference then they ask 
the Manager to speak with the applicant and may ask them for another Referee. If it 
is an external candidate, the Manager will need to complete a risk assessment for 
them until a reference is received. The same procedure is administered for internal 
officers, but only one reference is required by the current Manager. In addition, if 
the officer receives promotion there is no need for a reference as they will have the 
same Manager. 

 
 

Page 56



3.1.3 A sample of 20 individuals who had received a new job during the last year was 
selected. Their personnel files were checked for evidence of their qualifications, 
references and proof of identity and the following was found: 
a) evidence of qualifications for 10 in the sample but there was no record in the files 
of the remainder that may mean that officers are in a job but lack the required 
qualifications; 
b) references were received for 10 in the sample but there was no need for 
references for 7 other individuals in the sample as it appeared they had been 
promoted or seconded. No references were found for the other 3 in the sample. It 
was also noted that one of the certified references was not appropriate and was 
completed by the individual's Accountant. 
c) proof of identity for 13 individuals in the sample. 

3.1.4 New arrangements have come into force since 2018. Following appointment, the 
individual will receive a request from the Human Resources Assistants to visit Siop 
Gwynedd with evidence of their identity and qualifications if applicable. In addition, 
officers will receive the DBS forms of individuals (if applicable) at the same time, so 
that the process can be moved forward faster. It was inevitable to bring these 
arrangements into force due to failure on behalf of managers to receive evidence 

3.1.5 A sample of Managers across Council Departments were asked regarding their 
arrangements for receiving references and if they follow any specific guidance. It was 
expressed that they did not have a formal guide to follow but it was clear that they 
were aware of the need to receive references.  

3.1.6 It was discovered when checking the Council's intranet, in particular the References 
(FAQ) site - it is stated that if references are not received within a period of one 
month to the appointment, the Council will have the right to withdraw the post. 
However, the '1.6 Disclosure of Offences and Criminal Records Check' policy, 
expresses in part 1.11 "The Council will allow an individual to commence in the post 
in a situation where the references have not been received but the period for receipt 
of those will be limited to two months following commencement in the post.". The 
Human Resources Advisory Services Manager confirmed that the information was 
inconsistent and needed to be adapted so that it is consistent with the Crime 
Disclosure Policy. The FAQ's also states that it is the responsibility of the individual 
to ensure that the Council receives references within a period of one month of their 
appointment which is also incorrect. However, it should be noted that this page is in 
the process of being developed. 

3.1.7 The audit opinion does not reflect the work of the Council's Support Service but 
rather the lack of proper implementation of the Council Managers. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(C) No assurance of propriety can be given in the arrangements of obtaining 

references, proof of identity and evidence of qualifications as the controls in place 
cannot be relied upon. The relative officers have committed to implement the 
following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted: 

 Support Service Manager to continue with the new arrangements for receiving 
evidence. 

 Ensure that the information on the References page (FAQ) is consistent with what is 
set out in the Disclosure of Offences and Criminal Records Check policy. 

Page 57



Appendix 3 
SCHOOL MEALS INCOME  

EDUCATION 
 
1. Background 
1.1 The Council has introduced an option for parents or guardians of primary and special 

school children to pay online for goods or services for their children, such as school 
meals, music lessons etc. It is hoped that this would facilitate the payment, collection 
and administration of income, which ultimately will replace the bureaucratic 
administrative process of collecting cash and cheques in the school that comes with 
the current procedures. 

1.2 The project is a partnership between Gwynedd Council, all the county's primary and 
special schools and Cynnal. The new system encompasses receiving income online 
through the School Gateway website, where it can be administered through the 
Schoolcomms system. The system is integrated with the current Education system, 
SIMS (and the dinner money module), which means that the children's attendance 
details can be linked with the costs owed, as well as informing catering workers how 
many meals to prepare. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of the Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that the implementation of the online 

payment system meets the needs of all the stakeholders, including the schools, 
parents or guardians and the Council, by attending a series of progress meetings with 
project officers. 

 
3. Main Findings 
3.1 A number of benefits can be derived from adopting an effective system of electronic 

income collection, instead of from cash and cheques in the schools. It allows parents 
or guardians to make payments online at any time, which avoids the risks arising 
from giving the money to the pupils to pay the clerk, such as accidentally losing the 
money or from bullying, spending it on different goods or discriminating against 
children receiving free meals. 

3.2 Administrating cash and cheques in schools is very burdensome. The money needs 
to be collected, recorded and banked. It is then required to report to the Council 
details of what was banked, e.g. number of meals sold, debt levels etc. An effective 
system would calculate, record and bank the money immediately, automatically 
producing purposeful reports to the Council. 

3.3 At the time of the audit, the ability to pay online was already operational, but the 
option to pay with cash or cheque remains. This means that there are two options in 
place with elements of duplication. It is reasonable that there is a period of time 
between the two arrangements to give parents the opportunity to become familiar 
with the new system and to encourage those who are generally reluctant or unable 
to pay online, but a plan for the full implementation of the system, including 
timetable and plans to encourage its use by parents or guardians, is needed. 

 
 

Page 58



3.4 At present, the money paid online is credited to the Income Unit’s suspense account. 
However, it was not possible for the Income Unit to identify into which codes the 
money should be transferred to, so the balance was accumulating. It seems that 
reports can be created for this purpose, but that this was not known to the Income 
Unit until a recent meeting with Cynnal. A temporary arrangement is now in place 
where the reports will be produced and sent to the Income Unit, until the income 
codes are integrated into the system over the Summer, so the money can go straight 
to the codes without officers’ intervention. However, it is expected that such 
weaknesses would have been identified during the development phase and before 
the system went live. 

3.5 The new system can also be used to collect income to the schools' unofficial fund. 
This fund is independent of the Council's accounts, and money can be received by 
e.g. donations, contributions and through fundraising activities. As it is the school’s 
unofficial fund, it is not subject to monitoring, expenditure and banking controls of 
the same scale as accounts that are financed by the Council. Bank account details are 
already in place so specific income streams can be paid into either the Council's 
account or the unofficial fund. However, it was discovered that Schoolcomms users 
can create new bank accounts and ensure that certain income streams go to that 
account. This can lead to fraud, and if there was a loss to the unofficial fund then it 
would be dependent on the individual arrangements of the school to discover, given 
the arm’s length monitoring by the Council. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 

Internal Audit believes it is premature to give an official audit opinion as the system 
was not fully operational at the time of the audit. The Education Department has 
committed to implement the following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted: 

  Continue to promote online payments on the Council's Facebook and Twitter 
accounts. The Education Department is in the process of creating a video to share 
with schools that will show how to pay online. Schools will be able to display it in 
their school, share it on Facebook and in e-mails to parents. 

  Continue to discuss the short-term and long-term income coding process solution 
with Schoolcomms. 

  Enquire with Schoolcomms about the controls that are in place in relation to 
opening a new bank account, and consider if they are adequate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Appendix 4 
FOOD HYGIENE 
ENVIRONMENT 

 
1. Background 
1.1 Every food business is visited and audited by a Food Safety Officer, which 

concentrates on hygiene practices when handling food, the general condition of the 
building as well as how the business is managed. The majority of businesses will then 
receive a score, which they must display in a suitable place. Gwynedd Council runs 
the scheme, where over 2,000 food business are registered. 

 
2. Purpose and scope of the Audit  
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure sufficient arrangements were in place to 

provide an effective service to the customers and businesses of Gwynedd. 
2.2  The audit scope included reviewing arrangement for planning, conducting and 

administrating food hygiene visits, whilst ensuring that any recommendations from 
the Food Standards Agency have been implemented.  

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 Generally, it appears that appropriate internal controls are in place considering cuts 

in resources, but there is need to tighten on the following aspects in order to reduce 
the risks identified.  

3.1.1 Not all documents are loaded onto CIVICA (Environment’s system), as it was seen on 
many occasions that documents were missing. The Public Protection Manager 
(Welfare) confirmed he would remind Officers of the need to document everything 
on CIVICA. However, he added that their time for admin work was short, with the 
majority of their working hours spent conducting visits. It was agreed that the quality 
of their work would be monitored on a monthly basis from now on.  

3.1.2 If a food business in unhappy with their food hygiene score, an application can be 
made for a re-score, at a cost of £150. Re-score applications paid for by cheque are 
being considered before the payment is processed. It was seen that cheques were 
documented on a TR34 form, but not sent to the Cashier for processing for up to a 
week, with the re-score application having been processed in the meantime. The 
Service confirmed that re-score applications are not to be acted upon until a 
payment has been processed. Officers would be reminded of the correct procedures 
to follow via e-mail in the near future. 

3.1.3 Not all Food Safety Officers document that they have completed the annual 10 hours 
of essential training in a timely manner. The Officers are responsible for documenting 
their training on iGwynedd, providing certificates to confirm this. A sample o 5 
Officers were selected, with 2 having confirmed only 1.5 hours of relevant training 
for last year, with no certificates provided. The Public Protection Manager (Welfare) 
confirmed that this was not monitored, but that it is mandatory for the Officers to 
register with the Chartered Institute of Environmental Health annually, and proof of 
10 hours relevant training must be provided in order to do so. During a recent 
meeting with the Public Protection Manager (Welfare), the Officers had updated 
their records, with some certificates having been provided. It was said that staff 
would receive a reminder of the need to update their records regularly.  

Page 60



3.1.4 The correct procedure for conducting interventions is not followed on all occasions. 
It was seen that many food businesses had not been told of the outcome of the 
intervention within the expected 14 days. In the same manner, it appears that not 
all complaints are dealt with in a timely manner. For one customer, no record was 
seen that a reply had been sent at all. The Public Protection Manager (Welfare) 
confirmed that he would remind the Officers of the need to follow the correct 
procedures at all times.  

3.1.5 It was seen that every effort has been made to implement recommendations offered 
by the Food Standards Agency following their 2016 audit. A follow up audit was 
conducted recently, but the Public Protection Manager (Welfare) confirmed that no 
report has been received yet.  

 
4. Audit opinion 
(B) Partial assurance can be expressed in the department’s arrangements, as there are 

controls in place, but there are some aspects where arrangements can be 
tightened. The Public Protection Manager (Welfare) has committed to implement 
the following steps to mitigate the risks identified. 

 Remind Officers to load all documents on CIVICA. 

 Monitor the quality of the Officers work on a monthly basis. 

 Ensure that re-score applications are not acted upon until a payment has been 
processed. 

 Process TR34 forms in a timely manner to ensure that a payment has been 
received before any re-visits are arranged. 

 Remind the Officers to update their training records regularly. 

 Ensure that the Officers are aware of the communication procedures to follow 
when conducting interventions and when dealing with complaints. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



Appendix 5 
SMALLHOLDINGS  
ENVIRONMENT 

 
1. Background 
1.1 Gwynedd Council owns 49 smallholdings, which are relatively small units of land and 

property used for agricultural purposes. These smallholdings, totalling 3,135 acres, 
are rented out to tenants for an annual income of around £200,000. The 
smallholdings are managed by the Property Service. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of the Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that there are appropriate controls in place 

for managing income from smallholdings. In order to achieve this, the audit included 
reviewing relevant income transactions from the ledger, ensuring that the tenants 
were invoiced appropriately and that monitoring arrangements are in place in order 
to monitor the payments made. 

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 Plans are in place to change the way smallholdings are managed, with a ring-fenced 

budget from the 2018/19 financial year, and so to that end it was agreed that Internal 
Audit resources would be more effective by re-visiting the new procedures in due 
course. Accordingly, this audit was limited to the income process. Income 
transactions over several years were extracted from the financial ledger, ensuring 
that invoices were created on a regular basis and arrangements are in place for 
monitoring and receipt of the income.  

3.1.1 The Financial ledger shows that the Council uses recurring billing, which means that 
invoices are automatically generated on a specific time of the year, for a certain 
number of years in line with the current lease, but controls within the financial 
system limited the years that this could be done. Although recurring billing is 
generally a good control to ensure that invoices are raised, there may have been too 
much reliance on the procedure to look after itself, and failures were not found. An 
invoice for £7,500 was created on the 25/06/13, which is a cumulative payment for 
a three year rent for Unit 5255 (job number), as the recurring billing between 
11/01/10 and 12/01/14 had not occurred. There was also an invoice for £20,700 on 
30/10/17 for Unit 5309 due to a failure to raise invoices for £6,900 on 28/05/15 and 
28/05/16. The customer had been paying £575 per month, but now pays £625, which 
means that at this rate it will take 23 years to pay the arrears of £13,800. 

3.1.2 The recurring billing process seems to have failed because the period during which 
the invoices are periodically created, which were limited within the financial system, 
had expired, and the monitoring arrangements of the Property Service and the 
Finance Department did not discover it. As a result, the Income Unit began creating 
periodic reports to identify when the recurring billing of smallholdings (as well as 
others) end and renew them in accordance with the terms of the current lease. 
However, following discussions as part of this audit, it was discovered that it was 
possible to extend the recurring billing periods in the system well into the future and 
therefore arrangements are in place to increase the billing periods of smallholdings 
accordingly. This will alleviate the risk of failing to raise a bill on a tenant. 

Page 62



3.1.3 A credit note for £4,800 was raised on 30/03/11 as the tenant had left Unit 5332 
since March 2009, and credit notes totalling £19,500 was raised on 27/05/15 as the 
tenant had left Unit 5260 since 27/05/13. The failure to cancel the recurring bills and 
the need to raise credit notes suggests there are weaknesses in the tenancy 
monitoring process. However, the Income Unit explained that some recurring billing 
arrangements had been programmed for longer periods than the lease, in order to 
ensure that invoices were raised, as it was easier to raise a credit note as necessary 
instead of risking a failure to raise an invoice. Because recurring bills can now be 
extended well into the future, it is intended that the billing period for each lease 
would be extended within the financial system. 

3.1.4 Should an invoice remain outstanding, then the Council's normal recovery 
arrangements will be followed to recover the debt. However, the ledger and the 
Income Unit records show that long delays can occur between raising an invoice and 
receiving payment, with the promptness of payments varying from one tenant to 
another. Some invoices have to be written off, including a number of back-dated rent 
invoices between 25/03/09 and 25/03/11 and one case where a cumulative debt of 
£38k over a number of years will be written off, due to a failure to re-posses Unit 
5329 as there was no lease in place, despite efforts from the Legal Service to recover 
the debt. However, this arrangement was set under a historical process and the same 
failures are not expected to re-occur in the future. 

3.1.5 Therefore, it seems the newer procedures require a strengthening of the current 
income monitoring arrangements, by ensuring that invoices are raised in accordance 
with the agreement and incorporating the status of invoices with regards to 
outstanding sums and the punctuality of paying invoices into the monitoring system, 
in order to address bad-debtors before the debt accumulates excessively. Naturally, 
some tenants are better payers than others, but it seems that the system of paying 
in instalments does not lead to such problems. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(CH) An assurance of financial propriety cannot be given in smallholdings income 

arrangements as the controls are not sufficient, and losses arising from these 
weaknesses have been identified. The Service has committed to implement the 
following to mitigate the risks highlighted: 
• Income Unit to expand recurring billing periods. 
• Income Unit and Property Service to agree the parameters for budgetary control 

reports. 
• Adopt TF system for managing leases. 
• Income Unit and Property Service to meet on a quarterly basis to discuss the 

situation of the agreements, including debts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



Appendix 6 
SCHOOL BUILDING PROJECTS – YSGOL GLANCEGIN 

ENVIRONMENT 
 
1. Background 
1.1 An invitation to tender was issued in November 2015 in order to appoint contractors 

to build the new Glancegin School, Bangor. Wynne Construction were appointed to 
undertake the work, which commenced in the summer of 2016. The School is now 
open but exterior work continues on landscaping and access to the building and 
grounds of the School. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that the budget and progress of the Ysgol 

Glancegin construction project were controlled adequately, ensuring that the proper 
arrangements for the tendering process had been followed, that payments to 
contractors involved in the project complied with the Procedure/Procurement Rules 
and that payments were calculated correctly and justified with adequate documents. 

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 The original contract was valued at £4,439,000. Project Management Controls and 

arrangements were in place but there were some aspects, which could be improved 
for future projects. 

3.1.1 6 companies who were part of the North Wales Contractors Framework (NWCF) 
were invited to tender but only two presented a tender. The Framework has not had 
the desired effect in Gwynedd and is being reviewed at present. Gwynedd were not 
satisfied with the original terms for the second version of the framework but 
following discussions and negotiations have decided to remain part of the 
framework. The aim is to share expertise within the sector and develop community 
benefits within Gwynedd while also including smaller companies/contractors. 

3.1.2 Only the Property Development Manager had signed the final scoring sheet, all 
individuals who are part of the scoring process are expected to sign this document. 
However, the scoring process took place in December 2015 and the Project Manager 
has since agreed to this step in a separate audit, which was completed in July 2016. 
During a follow up audit this year, a scoring sheet dated February 2017 was seen 
which confirmed this step had been implemented. 

3.1.3 Some of the payments for the 'interim valuations' were late compared to the due 
date and date of the valuations. However, it was seen that Gwynedd had not 
received the ‘valuations’ for several days after the issue date. It was found that the 
contract had been modified to reflect these terms regarding the payment date which 
indicated that the payments should be made within 14 days of receipt of the 
'valuations' rather than by the due date. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



3.1.4 The plans had to be adapted and additional work was carried out as some elements 
of the original designs and architect designs did not meet Health and Safety 
requirements. As a result, some elements of the construction have had to be re-done 
with Gwynedd responsible for the additional costs. Consultation earlier in the 
process and receiving consistent input from Health and Safety would avoid similar 
situations in the future. It was highlighted that other current projects have already 
started this consultation and collaboration process. The intention is to either avoid 
problems or discover them earlier during the construction to reduce the implications 
on the budget and the project’s time/progress. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(B) Partial Assurance of propriety can be stated in the project management of Building 

Ysgol Glancegin; however, there are some aspects that could be improved. The 
Project Manager has committed to implementing the following steps to reduce the 
highlighted risks. 

 Consult with Gwynedd’s Health and Safety Officers earlier in future projects.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



Appendix 7 
CAR PARK INCOME 

ENVIRONMENT 
 
1. Background 
1.1 Gwynedd Councils car park income is collected and presented to the bank by 

Security+. Every amount banked is processed to the Income Units holding account, 
until the corresponding report is received by Security+ confirming to which specific 
car parks the income relates.  

 
2. Purpose and scope of the Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that secure arrangements were in place with 

regards to collecting, monitoring and processing the income collected from 
Gwynedd’s car parks. The audit scope included selecting a sample of income, 
checking that it had been processed timely and accurately within the Councils 
accounts. 

 
3. Main Findings 
3.1 Generally, it appears that appropriate arrangements are in place with regards to 

collecting and monitoring car park income, but there is need to tighten controls on 
the following aspects in order to reduce the risks identified. 

3.1.1 It was seen that the income is banked by Security+ within two days of being collected. 
However, Hanley depot bank one lump sum, which matches the exact total of the 
reports sent to the Income Unit, but Leigh depot cannot provide the same service. 
As many as three different bankings will need to be combined in order to reconcile 
with the report. In the past this made it very difficult to identify the income, and lead 
to a delay of months before it was processed to the ledger. By now Security+ send 
regular e-mails to Income Reconciliation and Processing Officer, confirming which 
amounts correspond to which report. On average, the income is now processed 
within 10 days.  

3.1.2 The reports received from Security+ can be difficult to understand, with the 
information laid out over two rows, and two machine numbers quoted for one 
amount, causing confusion as to which amount belong to which machine. A sample 
of 20 reports were selected, with 5 of them having not confirmed a machine number 
for some transactions. The Income Reconciliation and Processing Officer stated that 
such occurrences are processed to the unders and overs account. No enquiries are 
made in attempt to identify the income. A percentage of some car parks income is 
paid to the Town Councils, therefore it is essential that the income is recorded 
against the correct machine. The Income Reconciliation and Processing Officer 
agreed to ask Security+ for further information regarding all future transactions 
where no machine number is confirmed. The Parking Enforcement Manager also 
agreed to enquire with Security+ with regards to simplifying the reports.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



3.1.3 A sample of 10 car parks were selected and checked to see that the machines were 
emptied in compliance with the agreed timetable. It was seen that collections has 
been missed for every car park in the sample, with many collections held on days 
different to those agreed upon. However, the Parking Enforcement Manager was 
confident that were legitimate reasons for the missed collections, for example, that 
Security+ had trouble opening the machine. She confirmed that Security+ informed 
her instantly regarding any missed collections, and arranged to empty the machines 
the following day. She added, the only collections monitored are those relating to 
car parks the Council do not own, Galeri and Ffordd y Felin, as the Council receives a 
fee for these collections, with all proceeds being paid back to the owners.  

3.1.4 A test ticket is printed on every occasions when emptying a machine, that confirms 
the amount expected in the cash box. However, there is no arrangement in place to 
ensure that the amount collected agrees with the test ticket. On occasions where it 
was not possible to print a test ticket, the Parking Enforcement Manager has the 
means to print the last 10 tickets of every machine. The information on the test ticket 
is repeated on the car park reports, showing clearly any discrepancies. The Parking 
Enforcement Manager confirmed that a lack of resources means that only 
discrepancies relating to Galeri and Ffordd y Felin are questioned. 30 test tickets 
were checked to see whether they agreed with the amounts banked. One machine 
was short of over £400.  

3.1.5 The information received from Security+ is insufficient for the Environment Finance 
Unit to check that the car park income processed to the ledger agrees with the 
amount banked by Security+. At present, the figure banked is not documented on 
any report. The Finance Manager (Environment) confirmed the units needs, whilst 
the Parking Enforcement Manager agreed to enquire Security+.  

3.1.6 No detailed account is being kept of the Income Units suspense account. All car park 
income (as well as any other unidentified transactions) are processed to the 
suspense account until the corresponding report is received. The balance of the 
suspense account at the end of 2016/17 financial year was -£5,838, when the 
balance as of the end of January 2018 was £760,851. This amount includes all 
unidentified income which has been banked, not car park income only.  

 
4. Audit opinion 
(B) Partial assurance can be expressed in the arrangements for receiving car park 

income, as there are controls in place, but there are some aspects where 
arrangements can be tightened. The units/services  have committed to implement 
the following steps to mitigate the risks identified. 

 Ensure that enquiries are made to identify any income where no machine number 
has been confirmed. 

 Investigate and document any significant differences between the amount 
banked ac the test ticket total. 

 Make enquiries with Security+ in relation to receiving sufficient reports for the 
Finance Unit – Environment. 

 Ensure that a detailed records is kept of the holding account. 

 Consider the financial benefits of parking Council vehicles inside the Multi Storey 
car park in Caernarfon. 

 

Page 67



Appendix 8 
PENSION FUND – ANNUAL STATEMENTS 

FINANCE 
 
1. Background 
1.1 From 2018 onwards, benefit statements will be uploaded to the Member’s Self-

service portal (HWA - https://aelodau.cronfabensiwngwynedd.org.uk) rather than 
being printed and sent to all fund members. The portal can be accessed by following 
the ‘Pension Online’ link from the Gwynedd Pension Fund website. This change aims 
to enable the members to better plan and manage their retirement, make savings by 
reducing printing and postage costs and reduce the Fund’s carbon footprint. The 
Gwynedd Pension Fund (the Fund) sent a newsletter to its members as an appendix 
to the benefit statement for the 2016/17 tax year. The newsletter notes the Fund’s 
intention to change to electronic communications and that paper statements will not 
be sent to the Fund’s members unless they confirm, in writing that they wish to 
continue receiving them.    

 
2. Scope and Purpose of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that suitable arrangements were in place to 

manage the transition from written statements being sent to fund members to an 
online system. In order to achieve this, the audit covered checking any discrepancies 
between what the old statements and the new online system offered, the process of 
transitioning from one system to another as well as checking the financial impact of 
the change.   

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 Copies of the statement and newsletter sent in August 2017 were seen by the 

auditor. The information regarding the change from paper statements to online was 
clear and there were clear instructions to members of the fund of how to register on 
MSS. In The Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) 
Regulations 2013, regulations 27 and 28 state that the recipient must be notified 
when a website is first used to distribute information. It also states that information 
about the website must be included and that members need to be notified 3 times 
for the change to communicate online before the Fund can terminate the issuing of 
letters to individuals. The auditor saw a draft copy of the first letter that will be sent, 
it noted the Fund's compliance with the above regulations and met all the 
requirements. The Senior Communications Officer (Pensions) stated that there was 
a plan to send the first letter before the end of April 2018, the second 6 weeks later 
and the third 6 weeks later. 

3.2 It is mentioned in the newsletter that if an individual’s e-mail address is not on the 
Fund’s system, a letter will be sent to them within 10 working days containing an 
activation key to complete their registration on the website. However, after details 
are entered on the Member Self Service (MSS) site for the initial registration, a 
message appears stating that a letter will be sent within 3-5 working days. On the 
other hand, the registration process for individuals who already have their e-mail 
addresses on the Fund’s system is simple and efficient. 

 

Page 68



3.3  The MSS website is relatively easy to find from the Fund's new public website 
(http://www.cronfabensiwngwynedd.cymru or 
http://www.gwyneddpensionfund.wales). It was seen that the website offers the 
same details as those presented in paper statements as well as tabs such as ‘estimate 
benefit’ that enable members to calculate pensions/lump sums/ hypothetical death 
grants. The only confusing aspect of the site is that some special characters such as 
‘â’ and ‘ô’ are displayed as ‘ï¿½’ 

3.4 Personal details (address, postcode, telephone number, e-mail address) can be 
changed by a fund member directly on the MSS website. Basic personal details such 
as names are extracted from the Altair system that is part of the same main system 
and MSS website. Members' financial details are updated annually or monthly, based 
on data received by employers.  

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(A) Assurance can be expressed in the arrangements for transitioning from paper 

annual statements to using the Member Self-Service portal, as there are controls 
in place. The Pensions Unit has committed to implement the following steps to 
mitigate the risks identified.  

 Ensure consistency between the Fund’s website and the notification screen on 
the MSS by having them both state that letters containing activation keys will take 
10 working days to arrive.  

 Ensure that the website supports special characters to ensure the MSS is accurate 
and correct.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 69



Appendix 9 
BENEFITS SYSTEM – REVIEW OF THE KEY CONTROLS  

FINANCE 
 
1. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
1.1 The Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Practice, April 2014, states that the 

Authority’s external auditors, in conducting their audit of the Council's accounts, will 
rely wherever possible on the work of Internal Audit (and others). The Benefits 
System is considered to be a “major financial system” and therefore a review of the 
key controls of this system was conducted. 

1.2 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that there are appropriate arrangements in 
place to assess and process applications for benefits, that the benefits system 
calculates benefits correctly and that they are paid promptly. Confirm that 
appropriate reconciliations are held, review the unit’s performance management 
arrangements and check there are sufficient data protection arrangements in place. 

1.3 For the 2017-18 financial year, a sample of benefits applications were audited to 
ensure that appropriate assessments were undertaken. It was verified that 
reconciliations were conducted and that the benefits payments were calculated and 
paid accurately and promptly. The service’s performance status was assessed on 
implementing benefit applications and notifications, and checks were made that the 
benefits system was effectively managed and that all the data was appropriately 
secured.  

 
2.   Main Findings  
2.1 It was found that strong internal controls existed within the Benefit System’s 

administrative arrangements. 
2.1.1 There have been changes to the structure of the Unit during the last year, the Senior 

Benefit Officer was appointed Benefits Manager. No Senior Benefit Officer was 
appointed as such but additional responsibilities were given to others in the team. 

2.1.2 A random sample of new applications was selected, checking that a risk score was 
recorded and that they had been correctly calculated and paid promptly. In addition, 
a sample of extended payments and requests for back-payments were checked, it 
was found that they were in accordance with current regulations. 

2.1.3 The benefit system’s parameters were checked to ensure that they were consistent 
with the Department of Work and Pensions document 'Housing Benefit Circular - HB 
A12 / 2016'. There were inconsistencies with 'Private Tenant Standard Amenities' 
rates, it was confirmed that the rates were incorrect and they have already been 
addressed by the Benefits Manager. 

2.1.4  The Unit's performance statistics were checked, the average number of days taken 
to process a new benefit application and process notifications of a change in 
circumstances. Gwynedd's performance has fallen since last year (see table below), 
however, when compared to Wales and Britain’s performance it continues to be 
good (see table below). 

 
 
 
 

Page 70



Gwynedd 
Yearly 

Figures 
2016/17 

Quarter 1 
Figures 

2017/18 

Quarter 2 
Figures 

2017/18 

Process a new case (days) 16 19 20 

Process a change in 
circumstances (days) 

5 7 7 

 
 

 Quarter 2 Figures 2017/18 

 Gwynedd Wales Britain 

Process a new case (days) 20 20 23 

Process a change in 
circumstances (days) 

7 6 8 

 
 
3. Audit Opinion 
(A) Certainty of propriety can be declared in the benefits system - review of the key 

controls as the internal controls that are in place can be relied upon and they have 
been followed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



Appendix 10 
STORIEL – TREFNIADAU RHEOLI’R CAFFI 

ECONOMI A CHYMUNED 
 
1. Background 
1.1 Storiel is the new name of Gwynedd’s Museum and Art Gallery, Bangor. The Council 

had leased Storiel Cafe's facilities to ensure consistent income, but this agreement 
ended early in 2018. In the meantime, the Economy and Community Department 
decided to carry out a trial period between April and September 2018 where the 
department will be responsible for managing and running the café. 

  
2. Scope and Purpose of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that suitable arrangements are in place for 

Gwynedd Council to undertake the responsibility of managing Storiel Cafe in 
accordance with the relevant regulations and standards. In order to achieve this the 
audit included verifying that staffing arrangements, health and safety, budgetary 
arrangements and procurement and storage of goods and foods were adequate. 

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 The Economy and Community Department has sought to ensure that suitable 

arrangements are in place for the trial period ensuring that the Council's rules and 
policies are followed where appropriate. The unpredictable element of managing a 
business for profit will introduce new challenges to the Department and they must 
wait to see how the scheme evolves to measure its success. In order to mitigate many 
of the risks and facilitate the trial period, the Shop and Museum staff at Storiel will 
accept responsibility for some of the aspects of managing the Café. 

3.1.1 Staffing arrangements are in place, with job descriptions established for two new 
members of staff. The terms and conditions have been confirmed, although there 
are inconsistencies between the work hours on the contract and the "TR139 - New 
Appointment Form", and staff have already started on a training program. A budget 
has been set for staffing costs and the two new members will work to a rota on a 
various hours agreement and paid through time sheets. The budget will need to be 
carefully monitored if it is necessary to employ additional casual staff at busy times. 

3.1.2 It was found that the ordering and procurement arrangements need to be 
confirmed. The nature of running a café means that staff will need to make orders at 
short notice frequently. This may be difficult to implement through the e-
procurement system and discussions are required with the Procurement unit to 
agree the possibility of additional arrangements for minor and emergency orders, 
such as using an Order Book. The Service will need to consider establishing an 
arrangement that will allow staff to make orders on short notice, up to a specific 
threshold, by contacting the suppliers directly, without management authorisation. 
Appropriate compensatory controls will be required for such an arrangement. 

3.1.3 The staff of the Shop at Storiel will be responsible for counting and arranging for the 
Cafe’s income to be sent to the Bank, and to complete the relevant forms for the 
Income Unit. These staff members already deal with the income of the Shop and the 
Museum and therefore it is assumed that this would be the most suitable 
arrangement to ensure accuracy and consistency. 

Page 72



3.1.4 As there is not enough space to store the goods and foods in the kitchen, regular 
monitoring is required to ensure that goods are available when they need to be used. 
On the other hand it is expected that this lack of space will mean that excess goods 
and foods cannot be ordered which could result in wastage.  

3.1.5 The Gwynedd Health and Safety Service will need to be consulted to ensure that the 
new café staff carry out all necessary training. There will be additional requirements 
due to dealing with food and cleaning products as well as moving heavy equipment. 
It is therefore essential that training on food hygiene and manual handling be 
completed as soon as possible. New staff will need to be aware of the legislation and 
arrangements for dealing with chemicals by receiving guidance on COSHH1  

3.1.6 Regular monitoring of the developments will be essential and a timely discussion will 
be required in order to decide whether to extend the trial period or re-tender the 
café's lease. It will be difficult to assess the success of the trial in a short period of 6 
months. However, arrangements will be required either to ensure staffing 
commitment, or to prepare for the tender process if the café is to be leased again, 
to ensure that there is not a long period of lack of use and income from the facility. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 

It is assumed that it is untimely to give an official opinion, as the café had not re-
opened during the audit. The Economy and Community Department have 
committed to implementing the actions identified in the body of the report to 
establish robust arrangements for managing Storiel Cafe.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
1 Control of Substances Hazardous to Health 

Page 73



Appendix 11 
VICTORIA DOCK  

ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY 
 
1. Background 
1.1 Gwynedd Council owns Victoria Dock and the Dock is managed by Caernarfon 

Harbour Trust (CHT). A formal agreement exists between Gwynedd Council and CHT 
detailing the financial terms as well as all other relevant terms. 

1.2 There are up to 20 moorings for visitors to the dock. The number of visitor moorings 
varies as the length of each boat differs. There is a block of toilets and showers 
available for visitors, free wi-fi, webcams and recycling facilities. Red diesel is also 
sold. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that internal controls exist and are 

implemented in Victoria Dock. In order to achieve this, the audit covered the 
examination of a sample of financial transactions from the ledger to the monthly 
income and expenditure statements received from the Caernarfon Harbour Trust as 
well as the records held in the Dock for the 2017/18 financial year. In addition, the 
agreement between Gwynedd Council and Caernarfon Harbour Trust was checked 
as well as stock control, insurance arrangements etc. 

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 Appropriate controls have been found to exist in Victoria Dock but some aspects 

need to be tightened. 
3.1.1 All sales of diesel are receipted using the dedicated receipts book that has been 

prepared by the CHT which is also numbered. If a customer completes a payment 
with a card they receive a receipt from the card machine, the card machine prints 
two receipts, the customer's copy and a copy that is kept to balance the income. If a 
customer pays for electricity or a visit to the Dock with cash not all sales are 
receipted. The explanation given for this by the Dock Master was a lack of time. 

3.1.2 The Victoria Dock fees list that has been agreed by the Council is not consistent with 
the fees list on the CHT website. In particular, there were inconsistencies in the 
electricity fees. See the table below comparing the electricity prices: 

 

 Gwynedd Council Fees CHT Fees 

Annual Moorings 
£16/metre +VAT 
(under review) 

£11.93/metre 
+VAT 

   

Visitors (daily) £4.15 (including VAT) 
£3.50 (including 

VAT) 

Visitors (weekly) £15.60 (including VAT) £12 (including VAT) 

 
 
 
 

Page 74



3.1.3 Electric fees for annual berth holders is under review and at present the fee is 
calculated based on the previous year's electricity costs. There was a difference in 
the fee charged to daily visitors but whilst checking records on the 'Payments 
Received Sheet' it was seen that visitors were charged £3 not £ 3.50 or £ 4.15. 

3.1.4 The Council’s fee for registering interest in the waiting list is £ 100 (including VAT) 
this is also clearly stated on the CHT website. It was found that various sums had 
been received and it was explained that the fee raised historically was £40 and this 
is the fee that has been charged until recently. £100 is now charged for registering 
interest in the waiting list. 

3.1.5 Whilst reconciling visitor records and sales of diesel and electricity, it was seen that 
a lot of work and administrative steps were part of the process. Records of the boats 
that visit the Dock are recorded on dedicated 'Visitor Cards', this information is then 
recorded on the 'Record of Casual Visitors' sheets and diesel sales are recorded on a 
dedicated spreadsheet. This information is then entered onto the 'Payments 
Received Sheets' that are transferred to the CHT office. Recording seems to be time 
consuming and at times the information is duplicated. 

3.1.6 The Chief Maritime Officer and Administrative Assistant check the invoices received 
along with the expenditure statements on a monthly basis and question them if 
necessary. In the last year they have not been checking the income figures in detail. 
They do not receive a detailed breakdown of the income. 

3.1.7 A Cleaner is employed by CHT to clean Victoria Dock’s buildings but it became 
apparent that she is paid with cash so there are no tax and national insurance 
arrangements. If cash is paid the employee should agree to do this, Her Majesty's 
Revenue and Customs (HMRC) should be notified of the arrangements and the 
correct amounts of tax and national insurance contributions must be paid. This was 
highlighted in the 'Victoria Dock' audit report published in 2007 but the 
recommendation made at that time was not implemented. 

3.1.8 The Dock Master only orders goods when he sees that stock is getting low, usually 
goods are checked after they are received. However, he did not have a stock plan 
and stock checks were not carried out. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(B) Partial assurance can be expressed of propriety in Victoria Dock’s arrangements as 

controls have been established, but there are aspects where some arrangements 
can be tightened. The relevant officers have committed to implement the following 
steps to mitigate the risks highlighted:  

 Doc Master to ensure that a receipt is given for all payments made with cash using 
a dedicated receipts book. 

 Caernarfon Harbour Trust to ensure that the correct fees are charged to the 
customers and that their website is updated with the current information. 

 Streamline the arrangements of recording visits, diesel sales and electricity. 

 Principal Maritime Officer to receive analysis of income so that it can be inspected 
and identify errors. 

 Caernarfon Harbour Trust to notify HMRC that the Cleaner is paid with cash and 
ensure that the correct amounts of pay as you earn tax (PAYE) and national 
insurance are paid in accordance with the requirements. 

 Doc Master to produce a stock plan and carry out stock checks on a monthly basis. 

Page 75



Appendix 12 
TELECARE  

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING 
 
1. Background 
1.1 Gwynedd Council has provided a Telecare service for the residents of Gwynedd since 

2009. Recently it was decided to internalise the installation, maintenance and repair 
of equipment, which was previously commissioned to an external company. The Care 
Connect service, which is a 24hour monitoring centre to respond to the calls of 
Gwynedd Telecare service users, operates from two sites, one in Llangefni and the 
other in Colwyn Bay. Gwynedd Council together with the Isle of Anglesey Council and 
Conwy Council is part of a regional partnership, which is led by Conwy Council. 
Telecare works by using a variety of home sensors which send direct messages to the 
monitoring centre in the event of an emergency. An officer from the centre will talk 
to the user through a loudspeaker and call a relative, friend or emergency services. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that the internal controls involved in the 

provision and administration of Telecare in Gwynedd were adequate. The audit 
covered checking the Council's arrangements for the provision and maintenance of 
Telecare equipment for service users and that it was done as soon as possible. In 
addition, it was ensured that there was an appropriate agreement in place between 
the Council and the external provider and that the Service's income collection 
arrangements were appropriate. 

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 New Telecare arrangements have been operational since January 2018, where 

elements of the service have been internalised. Applications/orders for Telecare 
services now come direct through the Council's Property Department and the 
installation and maintenance work is carried out by departments officers. Much work 
has been done to streamline and simplify the process in order to fulfil the Telecare 
Service’ purpose, which is, "Help me live my life as I want, by using assistive 
technology to support me." 

3.2 Gwynedd Council's website has been updated to include the current contact 
information and details. Contact details have not been updated on the Care Connect 
website, they have been notified of this but is yet to be implemented. Old pamphlets 
were discovered with incorrect contact details at the Penrallt reception, the Service 
was informed of this and arrangements have been put in place to identify which 
establishments these pamphlets can be found, in order for the installers to collect 
whilst in the area. However, it is understood that arrangements are in place to ensure 
that no telephone calls are missed if anyone uses information from a brochure that 
is no longer current. New brochures have been created, these will be distributed 
once the weekly fee has been agreed. 

 
 
 
 

Page 76



3.3 The equipment installers take a paper copy of the Telecare agreement to the users' 
home. In addition, the installers ask users to sign an 'app' they have on their phones, 
as confirmation that they accept the terms and conditions. Once the user has signed, 
the signature is automatically sent to the Property Departments TF System, which is 
the system used to record and describe the "job". However, at present, only an image 
of the signature appears on the system. It was explained that the Property 
Department is working to have an additional sentence on the 'app' where the users 
sign that they agree and accept the terms and conditions, this would then appear 
with the signature on a TF System. 

3.4  There is no service level agreement (SLA) established between the Telecare Service 
and the Property Department at present. The Gwynedd Assistive Technology Service 
Development Manager will consider the delivery measures whilst compiling the SLA, 
these will be in line with the purpose of the service. 

3.5 There are no formal stock records. The Gwynedd and Anglesey Care and Repair stock 
has been transferred to Gwynedd Council stores but they did not inherit their 
records. New equipment is ordered, returned and equipment leaves the store to be 
installed. A barcode scanning system which would be connected to Care Connect has 
been considered but further discussions are needed before deciding the way 
forward. 

3.6 Officers have been appointed to undertake the work of installing the Telecare 
equipment, one of which has transferred from Gwynedd and Anglesey Care and 
Repair on the TUPE terms. Although the manager had started the process of 
receiving DBS disclosures for these officers in January 2018, it has now been seen 
that only one has received a disclosure while the other officer remains in receipt. It 
is intended to have other officers from the Property Department to assist with the 
change of batteries in Equipment etc, these officers have received or are in the 
process of renewing their disclosures. Not all posts were identified in the Job System 
as requiring a DBS disclosure until recently, this may have contributed to the delay 
of following up the officer's disclosures. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(B) Partial assurance of propriety can be declared in the Telecare arrangements as 

controls are in place, but there are aspects where the arrangements can be 
tightened. The relevant officers are committed to implementing the following 
steps to mitigate the risks highlighted: 

 Ensure that installers collect the old Telecare pamphlets. 

 Create a poster with Telecare contact details and place it in these establishments 
as the new pamphlets are not ready yet. 

 Discuss further with the TF System’s administrators to insert wording on the 'app' 
as confirmation that users agree with the terms and conditions of the agreement. 

 Produce a service level agreement between the Telecare Service and the Property 
Department ensuring that delivery measures are established and agreed. 

 Establish a stock management plan. 

 Ensure that all officers undertaking the work receive a DBS disclosure. 
 
 
 

Page 77



Appendix 13 
SUPPORTED HOUSING 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING 
 
1. Background 
1.1 There are nine Supported Houses in Gwynedd, supporting clients over the age of 18 

who have learning disabilities to live a semi-independent life, with some houses 
housing to up to four clients. 

 
2. Purpose and scope of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to select a sample of Supported Houses, ensuring that 

appropriate financial and safety procedures were in place in accordance with the 
Councils rules and regulations. The audit scope included checking financial 
arrangements as well as management procedures for a sample of houses.  

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 Three houses were visited during the audit, Bryn Afon, Dyffryn Arduduwy and 106 

Lôn Abererch, Pwllheli, both managed by the Housing Support Manager, and 4 Bryn 
Rhos, Caernarfon, under the management of the Registered Care Manager. 
Generally, it appears that appropriate arrangements are in place, but there is need 
to tighten controls on the following aspects in order to reduce the risks identified.  

3.1.1 Fire tests are not performed on time at 4 Bryn Rhos, whilst there is no record kept of 
Snowdonia Fire Service’s visits and tests at 106 Lôn Abererch, even though 
confirmation was received by the Housing Support Manager that they visit regularly. 
In addition, the Fire Management Plan present at all three houses was dated 2008. 
The latest versions, dated 2017 was sent to the Managers following the visits 

3.1.2  Risk assessments are not dated or signed following reviews, giving the impression 
that no review was conducted since the date the assessment was originally 
produced. Confirmation was received that this would be done from now onwards.  

3.1.3 When reporting accidents, no copy of the HS11 forms are kept. The Housing Support 
Manager confirmed that the original is sent to the Health and Safety Unit, leaving 
the houses with no record. It was suggested that a copy should be kept from now 
onwards.  

3.1.4 No medication stock checks are conducted at Bryn Afon nor 106 Lôn Abererch, even 
though they should be done weekly. In the same instance, 4 Bryn Rhos do not 
monitor the temperature of the room where medication is kept. The Registered Care 
Manager confirmed that this would be done from now onwards.  

3.1.5 Generally, it was seen that the Support Workers training was not current, with some 
workers ‘qualifications’ expired, and others not trained in certain areas. The records 
of 15 Support Worker were checked, 5 from each house. Only 5 had current training 
with regards to medication and fire. The Housing Support Manager confirmed that it 
was difficult booking fire training, with spaces being taken up at a rapid speed.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



3.1.6 Imprest applications are not presented regularly. The Housing Support Manager was 
already aware of this, and confirmed that she was attempting to present them more 
often. At the beginning of March 2018 the accounts of 106 Lôn Abererch and Bryn 
Afon were in debt of £640 and £5,000 respectively.  

3.1.7 It was seen that the clients of Bryn Afon’s contribution towards food are paid out of 
the imprest account, before then being refunded to the account from the individual 
client’s bank accounts. The Client Assets Management Officer confirmed that this 
arrangement was put in place because the location of the house makes it impractical 
for the Support Workers to visit the Council Offices in order to collect cash, which is 
the norm for many supported houses. He added that discussions have taken place in 
the past regarding the idea of opening an individual bank account for each house, 
with contributions to food being paid straight into it. The Support Worker could then 
visit any cash machine in order to debit funds. This would not only simplify the 
process for the Support Workers, freeing more of their time to support the clients, 
but would also allow every house to be constant in their arrangements. The idea was 
supported by the manager of the houses, however, even though discussions and 
meeting were held with the bank, no further action was taken. The Client Assets 
Management Officer expressed his desire to reconsider the notion. The Registered 
Care Manager agreed to discuss the matter with the Learning Disabilities 
Development and Provider Manager.  

3.1.8 A significant overspend was seen against this years traveling costs budget for Lôn 
Abererch, where the other houses seem to under spend. It was discovered that the 
Housing Support Managers travelling claims, presented through the self-service 
facility, are all recorded against Lôn Abererch’s even though visits are made to other 
houses. Support Services confirmed that the self-service facility does not at present 
facilitate splitting claim to different cost centres. The Accounts Assistant confirmed 
that they were happy for the Manager to continue producing claims through self-
service, and they would make adjustment in the ledger.  

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(C) No assurance of propriety can be expressed in the financial arrangements for  

Supported Housing, as the internal controls cannot be depended upon, however, 
no losses/fraud was detected resulting from the weakness in controls. The 
Managers have recognized the need to implement the following steps to mitigate 
the risks identified: 

 Ensure that fire tests are conducted and recorded on time.  

 Date and sign risk assessment reviews.  

 Ensure that medication stock checks are conducted and recorded weekly. 

 Ensure that the temperature of the medication room is monitored and recorded 
on a daily basis. 

 Ensure that Support Workers training is current, with medication and fire training 
is arranged for the near future.  

 Ensure that imprest claims are presented often, and they do not exceed 2/3 of 
the accounts level. 

 Consider the benefits of introducing new procedures for receiving client’s 
contribution towards the cost of food.  

 

Page 79



Appendix 14 
Y FRONDEG 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING 
 
1. Background 
1.1 Cartref Y Frondeg, Caernarfon is a residential home that provides care for up to nine 

adults with learning disabilities. Since the current manager of the home has only 
been in their role since January 2018, it was decided that no audit opinion would be 
given, only an agreed action plan. A full audit will be conducted on the home during 
the 2018/19 financial year. 

 
2. Scope and Purpose of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that the management and upkeep 

arrangements of Y Frondeg were appropriate and in accordance with relevant 
regulations and standards. The audit included checking that Frondeg’s arrangements 
were adequate in terms of administrative and staffing, budgetary control, 
procurement of goods and income, health and safety and performance monitoring 
as well as ensuring that the Service users and their property are safeguarded.   

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 A draft copy of the statement of purpose was received by the manager. It met the 

requirements from CSSIW’s report (January 2018) and most of the requirements for 
a statement of purpose. Information was not included on the home’s ‘behaviour 
management’ policy. There was also no information about the arrangements made 
to release a registered person’s commitment under regulation 12(4)(b) of the Care 
Homes (Wales) Regulations (2002).  

3.2 A sample of 3 residents’ care plans were checked, one had been updated but the two 
other plans were not current. The plans were comprehensive but needed updating. 
The Manager stated that they were in the process of updating each care plan.  

3.3 There was no contract between the residents and the Council for the sample of 3 
residents.  

3.4 Certificates of training were seen within the individual files for members of staff. 
Most staff had received relevant training but some certificates had expired. The 
Manager agreed that a spreadsheet to monitor staff training dates would be useful. 

3.5 The Manager confirmed that they were working towards a level 5 QCF qualification. 
This level of qualification is required for a registered manager so having ‘no 
registered manager’ does not comply with CSSIW requirements.  

3.6 CSSIW were concerned with the lack of supervision, which has been a problem in the 
home for a few months. The Manager had successfully conducted supervision 
sessions with 13 staff at the time of the visit and supervision sessions were planned 
for the rest of the staff.   

3.7 No ‘Personal Items’ forms were seen for the residents. The Manager had arranged 
to meet with Tan Y Marian’s Manager to view examples of the required documents.  

 
 
 
 

Page 80



3.8 There is a keypad on the doors to the Manager’s office and the medication room. 
However, the codes for the room’s keypads were written down and placed on the 
doorframe so that anyone could gain access. The Manager stated that they did not 
want their office locked so that staff could freely Access care plans, policies etc.  

3.9 The home’s fire documentation, including the Fire Log Book were all kept in the blue 
box and were checked. There were no clear records that tests were carried out as 
required. Some records were not complete, containing a signature but no date etc.  

3.10 Risk assessments for the kitchen were completed and had been reviewed in January 
2018 by the Cook. No risk assessments for the home in general were seen. 2 of the 3 
residents from the sample’s risk assessments were not up to date. The Manager 
stated that plans were underway to update these and that a visit by a Health and 
Safety Officer was organised to ensure standards.    

3.11 One member of staff had no qualification at all and 5 had training that was over 3 
years old and therefore needed renewing. All staff from the selected sample had 
attended safeguarding training but some were due to be renewed. DBS checks were 
up to date for all staff except one. The Manager was aware of the DBS case and 
agreed to take action.  

3.12 A form containing both signatures and shorthand signatures of staff who are 
authorised to sign medication documents was situated in the medication room. The 
In-Charge Officer was asked about competency tests and stated that they were 
sometimes carried out but there was no arrangements in place for annual testing. 
Competency test records were seen in 2 members of staff’s files. A copy of the 
Medication Policy was available to staff in the medication room but only 4 of those 
who administered medication had signed to confirm that they had read and 
understood the policy. A keypad was on the door to the medication room but the 
code was clearly visible on the doorframe meaning anyone could gain access to the 
room. The medication refrigerator’s temperature records were checked and were 
correct and in order. However, the refrigerator’s thermometer displayed 8.6°C 
during the visit, which is above the maximum of 8°C indicated in the Council’s 
Medication Policy.  

 
4.     Audit Opinion 
        It is premature to give an official opinion on the audit as the home is in the process 

of implementing the recommendations of the CSSIW report which outlined 
compliance deficiencies and a full audit will take place in the 2018/19 financial 
year. The home is committed to implementing the following steps to mitigate the 
risks highlighted: 

 

 Continue to update residential care plans and ensure they include agreements, 
risk assessments and inventories. 

 Produce a staff training spreadsheet and keep it updated to ensure that all staff 
receive the correct training and that qualifications are renewed in a timely 
manner. 

 Create risk assessments for the reasonable risks in the home and for the residents 
and update them as necessary or at least annually.  

 Continue to conduct staff supervision and ensure it takes place every 2 months. 
  

Page 81



 Ensure that purchases are created and recorded in a timely manner and date all 
invoices that arrive in the home.  

 Create an inventory list for the home and review annually. 

 Ensure that everyone does not have access to the medication room by sharing the 
keypad code with only the required individuals.  

 Ensure that the policies available to the home’s staff are current.  

 Check the DBS status of all staff. 

 Create monthly imprest claims and ensure all receipts are valid.  

 Ensure that the records of staff who are entitled to sign off/administer medication 
are up to date. 

 Conduct medication competency tests annually and ensure that the relevant staff 
read and sign the Medication Policy. 

 Ensure that the final statement of purpose includes information about the home’s 
behaviour management policy and the arrangements made to release a 
registered person’s commitment under regulation 12 (4) (b). 

 Ensure that the work program is followed to implement the recommendations 
received by CSSIW in their report dated January 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 82



Appendix 15 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR CHILDREN LEAVING CARE 

CHILDREN AND SUPPORTING FAMILIES 
 

1. Background 
1.1 ‘When I am Ready’ is a Welsh Government scheme established in 2015, where a 

young person in foster care continues to live with their former foster carer beyond 
the age of 18. Under a ‘When I am Ready’ arrangement, the carer becomes the young 
person's landlord. The scheme was established to prepare local authorities for their 
new duties under the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 the post-18 
living arrangements. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of the Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that there were suitable arrangements in 

place for looked after children who wish to continue living with their foster carers 
after they became 18 years old. In order to achieve this, the audit encompassed 
ensuring that the Council had fulfilled their legal duties under the Social Services and 
Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 and the ‘When I am Ready’ Good Practice Guide, for a 
sample of young people, by preparing appropriate plans for them such as 'Pathway 
Plans' and ‘When I am Ready’ plans. 

 
3. Main Findings  
3.1 At the time of the audit, there were six young people on the 'When I am Ready' 

scheme, with an additional two being imminently established. The WCCIS2 system 
was reviewed to confirm that there was a trail of support from the Council to prepare 
young people for post-18 living arrangements, starting before the person turned 16. 
When undertaking the audit, it is important to take account of the circumstances of 
some of the young people, and the impact these will have on the Service's 
arrangements. 

3.1.1 The Council is expected to prepare a pathway plan for all looked after children before 
they are referred to the post-16 team, in order to assess their needs and to help the 
young person transition from being in care to becoming an adult. WCCIS records 
show that an assessment and pathway plan was not always in place by the young 
person’s 16th birthday, and the standard of the plans can vary. However, in these 
cases, records of visits or 'Child / Young Person's Looked After Review' meetings 
states that future living wishes had been discussed. The Post-16 Team is keen to 
change their arrangements in this respect, by identifying young people who are 
approaching the age of 16 and becoming more proactive in their arrangements so 
that a pathway plan is in place when they transfer to the team rather than waiting 
for a referral from the Social Worker. Pathway plans are reviewed in statutory 6-
monthly reviews, and the majority of meetings took place within this timetable. 

 
 
 
 

                                                           
2Welsh Community Care Information System 

Page 83



3.1.2 The ‘When I am Ready’ Good Practice Guide states: “Once it is clear the young person 
and their foster carer wish to enter into a ‘When I am Ready’ arrangement, you will 
need to set up meetings to plan the details of the arrangement. It is good practice to 
keep these separate from LAC review meetings, as LAC reviews have a wider 
function.” It was found that meetings to discuss 'When I am Ready' arrangements 
are being held, but no specific records of these meetings are kept. 

3.1.3 One of the lessons learned by the Service is the need to raise foster parents’ 
awareness of the financial implications of 'When I am Ready', to ensure early 
commitment to the arrangements or to give more planning time for alternative 
arrangements. The Service has identified the need to hold training sessions for foster 
parents, and emphasize the financial implications of ‘When I am Ready’. Uncertainty 
can have a serious impact on young people and it is essential that robust 
arrangements are agreed as soon as possible. 

3.1.4 The Council has established a Corporate Parent Panel in accordance with its 
responsibility to act as a corporate parent for looked after children. The Panel keeps 
an overview of the welfare and interests of children in care. Membership of the Panel 
includes the Lead Member for Children and Young People, the Leader of the Council, 
relevant Cabinet Members, foster parents, Young People's Champion and a member 
selected by Scrutiny Committees. The Panel also includes the Chief Executive, 
Corporate Director and Statutory Director of Social Services, Head of Children and 
Supporting Families Department and the Head of Education. 

3.1.5 Minutes of the Panel’s meetings, as well as Gwynedd’s Corporate Parent Strategy, 
that was presented to the Panel at the 23/10/17 meeting were reviewed, and they 
were deemed appropriate. In addition, training details given to 30 Council Members 
on 10/01/2018 on their duties as Corporate Parents was also reviewed. There will be 
another training session held for those Members who did not attend this training. 

  
4. Audit Opinion 
(B) The Audit opinion is that partial assurance of propriety can be expressed in the 

arrangements for children leaving care as controls have been established, but there 
are some aspects where these could be tightened. The Service has committed to 
implementing the following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted: 

 Keep records of ‘When I am Ready’ meetings on WCCIS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



Appendix 16 
RECYCLING TARGETS 

Highways and Municipal 
 
1. Background 
1.1 Targets have been set by the Welsh Government to encourage Local Authorities to 

increase recycling to reduce the amount of biodegradable waste sent to landfill, 
reduce the impact of 'greenhouse gases' on the environment, reduce our carbon 
footprint and save money by reusing waste either as materials or to create energy. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that suitable arrangements were in place for 

Gwynedd Council to meet statutory recycling targets set by the Welsh Government. 
The Welsh Authorities need to ensure that 64% of their waste is recycled by 2020 
and 70% by 2025. Gwynedd need to ensure a maximum of 16,978 (t) is landfilled this 
year, with the allowance decreasing to 15,143 (t) in 2020. In order to achieve this, 
the audit covered checking the data presented on these targets in Gwynedd and 
checking the monitoring arrangements in place. 

 
3. Main Findings 
3.1 It was found that suitable arrangements were generally in place to try to ensure that 

Gwynedd achieves its targets. The team strives to provide services effectively to the 
residents of Gwynedd but success depends on changing the attitude and mind-set of 
some of the residents. A high percentage of residual waste continues to include 
items that can be recycled and therefore the commitment of all residents is essential 
due to increasingly challenging targets and financial penalties. 

3.1.1 Information about the recycling services are shared through a variety of sources, 
both electronically and on paper. In addition to the 'kerbside' collections, Gwynedd's 
Recycling Centres and bulky collections service are useful resources for the public 
but there is not as much awareness of these services. 

3.1.2 News articles were published in the press and 'Newyddion Gwynedd' paper 
regarding the financial penalties that Gwynedd could face. These penalties are used 
as a logic behind changing residual waste collection (Green Bins) arrangements to 
every three weeks and expanding the recycling service. However there may not be 
enough of this element being publicized, meaning that many of the public continue 
to see the changes as negative cuts by the Council. 

 3.1.3 Data is sent to the 'Waste Data Flow' system on the basis that there are 52,300 240 
litre wheeled bins in Gwynedd. There is no database of all equipment in Gwynedd as 
they were distributed a long time ago. As a result, the experience and knowledge of 
the workforce is important in ensuring that service is provided where necessary. 

3.1.4 The workforce seek to monitor the contents of residual waste bins and inform their 
Leaders if it is possible to increase the amount of waste recycled. The Recycling 
Officers try to contact properties to offer help and increase awareness of the 
recycling service and the negative effects of landfill. However, this is a small part of 
their duties and much of their work and plans aim to change the thinking of children 
and people for the future. The Service has identified the need for further 
campaigning and challenging non-compliant residents in order to achieve targets. 

Page 85



3.1.5 Keeping within the landfill allowance is increasingly challenging for Gwynedd, 
especially as the allowance reduces over time. The department's income targets 
encourage them to attract commercial waste collection customers to increase 
income. The recycling percentage of businesses receiving the service continues to 
increase, but the residual waste collected contributes negatively to Gwynedd's 
landfill performance. The introduction of the LDT (Landfill Disposal Tax) by the 
Government in April 2018 could place increasing pressure on Gwynedd to reduce the 
amount of landfill waste to avoid extra fees for its disposal. 

3.1.6 Gwynedd is considering the removal of Recycling Banks from community sites. 
Improvements in the 'kerbside' recycling service as well as the risk of misusing the 
banks mean that they are obsolete. Removal of the service would create budgetary 
savings for the department by avoiding the need to employ private companies to 
dispose of the content. Changes to the 'cartgylchu' system for 2018 have been 
introduced which allow the public to dispose of additional waste by recycling rather 
than with the green bin. Plans are in hand to expand the service further with the aim 
of preventing items that can be recycled from going to the green bins. Other services 
are available to the public at a reasonable cost such as bulky collections that would 
contribute to the recycling targets as well as the income target. Raising public 
awareness of this service as well as the Recycling Centres should be considered, as it 
would persuade individuals not to ‘fly tip’. 

3.1.7 A fee for a garden waste collection service was introduced in 2017 to try to increase 
income for the department. As a result, the reduction in garden waste collected in 
the first year was 2000 (t). This is within the estimated 3% reduction, but they are 
confident that there will be an increase over time, thus contributing to the 
achievement of the recycling targets. 

3.1.8 Weekly food waste collections try to encourage residents not to dispose of food in 
the green bin. An increase in recycling of food waste would contribute significantly 
towards the recycling target and reduce the possibility of unpleasant odours from 
the green bins and attracting pests. Gwynedd is committed to a 15-year agreement 
with the Biogen company at the GwyriAD site in Llwyn Isaf. As part of the agreement, 
Gwynedd needs to provide a minimum amount of food waste (GMT) for processing. 
The amount is very challenging and to contribute to it, Gwynedd has secured an 
agreement to receive food waste collected from Anglesey and parts of Conwy. 

3.1.9 There are very high overtime costs within the department in order to deliver all 
services, deal with failed collections and operate the recycling centres over the 
weekend. Reducing the 'already missed' collections would have a very negative 
effect on the Council's name; therefore, consideration is being given to changing the 
terms of recycling centre workers. 

3.1.10 The FFOS system has recently been adopted and helps Gwynedd reduce the 
expected time between members of the public applying for equipment/service and 
accept that service/equipment. The department aims to provide the 
equipment/service within 10 working days to enable the public to contribute to the 
recycling targets as soon as possible. A sample of applications was received from 
FFOS and 58% of applications were found to be met within 10 days. However, these 
statistics are misleading, since the report is run only once a week, and the completion 
date is the date the details are entered into the system. There is a significant delay 
at times before the staff who input them into the FFOS system receive the details. 

Page 86



4. Audit Opinion 
(B) Partial assurance of the arrangements and controls in place can be stated for 

Gwynedd to achieve their Recycling Targets, but there are aspects that can be 
improved. The Department is committed to implementing the following steps to 
reduce the highlighted risks: 

 Increase awareness of schemes such as bulky waste collections in order to 
increase income and reduce ‘fly tipping’ 

 Review the Overtime arrangements of the Recycling Centre Workers. 

 Increase awareness of the Recycling Centres to reduce ‘fly tipping’ and incidents 
of large items/waste being disposed of in the green bins.  

 Continue with the campaigns to encourage residents and Commercial waste 
customers to increase the amount of waste recycled and reduce residual waste.  

 
 

Page 87



COMMITTEE   AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
DATE    10 MAY 2018 
 
TITLE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 
 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT TO EXPRESS INTERNAL AUDIT’S OPINION ON THE OVERALL 

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT WITHIN THE AUTHORITY  
 
AUTHOR LUNED FÔN JONES – AUDIT MANAGER 
 
ACTION TO RECEIVE THE REPORT  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. INTERNAL AUDIT’S PURPOSE 

1.1 The purpose of the Internal Audit Service is: 

 

To give confidence to the citizen and the Council on the Council’s control 

environment and governance arrangements through independent and objective 

reporting to the Head of Finance and the Audit and Governance Committee 

 

 

2. PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS 

 

2.1 CIPFA’S Local Government Application Note for the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards states: 

 

 “The organisation is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk 

management processes, control systems, accounting records and governance 

arrangements. Internal Audit plays a vital part in advising the organisation that these 

arrangements are in place and operating properly. The annual internal audit opinion, 

which informs the governance statement, both emphasises and reflects the 

importance of this aspect of internal audit work.” 

 

2.2 The purpose of this annual report is to provide the Authority with such an annual 

internal audit opinion. In giving my opinion, it should be noted that assurance can 

never be absolute. The most that the internal audit service can provide to the Council 

is a reasonable advice that there are no major weaknesses in the whole system of 

internal control. 

 

2.3 In assessing the advice given, I have taken into account all audits relevant to 2017/18 

and any follow-up action taken in respect of audits from this and previous periods. 

 

 

Page 88

Agenda Item 9



3. OVERALL ASSURANCE 

3.1 On the basis of Internal Audit work completed during 2017/18, in my opinion 

Gwynedd Council has a sound framework of control to manage risks. This assists in 

providing assurance in the arrangements for ensuring effective and efficient 

achievement of the Council’s objectives, as the steps taken by the Council during the 

accounting period to establish and strengthen internal controls and to ensure that 

recommendations to remedy weaknesses identified by the Internal Audit service 

have, overall, been satisfactory. 

 

3.2 Considerations 

 In giving my opinion on the adequacy of the internal control systems, I have taken into 

consideration: 

 Overall, good internal control was found within each of the Council’s individual 

services. 

 All Council departments have built on previous work to continue the development 

of their risk assessment arrangements. 

 Where significant control weaknesses were found, these matters were resolved 

by the Council’s officers, by the Control Improvement Working Group or otherwise 

considered by the Audit and Governance Committee. 

 No reliance has been placed on any work by external assurance bodies when 

formulating the opinion in this report. 

 

4. AUDIT WORK 

 Audit Plan 

4.1 A total of 58 assignments were contained in the revised audit plan for 2017/18. Of 

these, all were completed by 31 March 2018, which represents 100% of the plan. For 

the purposes of this measure, an assignment is counted as being completed when the 

final report/memorandum has been released or, if there is no report/memorandum, 

the assignment has been closed and no further time is expected to be spent on it. The 

performance ambition was 95%. 

 

4.2 This performance compares with the 2016/17 performance of 95.83%, against a target 

of 95%. 

 

4.3 The audits from the 2017/18 plan that have contributed to the opinion contained in 

this annual report are listed in Appendix 1. 

4.4 Where relevant, internal audit reports are categorised to give an overall audit opinion 

of the control environment for that particular system or establishment. 

Opinion “A”  Assurance of financial propriety can be expressed as the controls in 

place can be relied upon and have been adhered to. 

 

Page 89



Opinion “B”  Controls are in place, and partial assurance of financial propriety can be 

expressed as there are aspects where some procedures can be 

strengthened. 

 

Opinion “C”  Assurance of financial propriety cannot be expressed as the controls in 

place cannot be relied upon, but losses/fraud due to these weaknesses 

were not discovered. 

 

Opinion “CH”  Assurance of financial propriety cannot be expressed as acceptable 

internal controls are not in place; losses/fraud resulting from these 

weaknesses were discovered. 

 

4.5 All agreed actions that were presented were done so in order to strengthen internal 

controls that mitigate operational risks, and to establish best practice. 

4.6 Of the 58 assignments in the 2017/18 audit plan, the following opinion categories 

were expressed: 

Opinion Category Number of Audits 

A 10 

B 32 

C 8 

CH 1 

No Category 7 

Total 58 

 

4.7 Of the reports relating to 2017/18 that were given an ‘A’ to ‘Ch’ opinion category, 

82.35% obtained an ‘A’ or ‘B’ opinion. This figure is slightly lower than the equivalent 

figure of 85.71%  in 2016/17.  

4.8 One audit received an ‘Ch’ opinion, which was Smallholdings. 

4.9 The full reports are presented to the Audit and Governance Committee after the final 

report has been agreed with the client and issued. Where a memorandum is issued 

rather than a full report, and where there is no opinion category, the Audit nad 

Governance Committee is presented with a summary of the findings of the relevant 

audits where appropriate. 

4.10 The table below shows which meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee has 

received the details of audits from the 2017/18 plan. The dates of the relevant 

meeting of the Audit Committee are also shown in Appendix 1. 

 

Page 90



Date of release of Final Report/ 

Memorandum 

Date of Report to the Audit 

Committee 

1 April 2017 – 30 June 2017 13 July 2017 

1 July 2017 – 15 September 2017 28 September 2017 

18 September 2017 – 17 November 2017 30 November 2017 

20 November 2017 – 26 January 2018 8 February 2018 

29 February 2018 – 31 March 2018 10 May 2018 

 

 Revisions to the Plan 

4.11 Revisions to the audit plan were reported regularly to the Audit and Governance 

Committee during the year. 

  

Follow-up Work 

4.12 Out of the 223 agreed actions made in 2016/17, 90.09% were fully implemented by 

31 March 2018. One of the actions was no longer relevant, so the statistics are based 

on a number of 222 agreed actions, that is, acceptable implementation on 200 out of 

222. 

  

Control Improvement Working Group 

4.13 The Control Improvement Working Group continued its work of strengthening the 

Council’s arrangements for responding to Internal Audit reports. The Working Group 

consists of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee and three other members 

(chosen by rotation) that meets between the Audit Committee meeting and discusses 

issues of control weaknesses that have arisen at the Committee meeting, in order to 

give them attention to greater depth. Every report that has been given an ’C’ or ’Ch’ 

opinion receives attention there, with officers being invited to attend to explain the 

control weakness and, primarily, to explain the steps that have been taken to improve 

the situation. 

 

 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES 

 Staffing and Qualifications 

5.1 The Audit Manager undertakes the function of “Head of Internal Audit”. The Audit 

Manager is accountable to the Senior Manager Revenue and Risk, who is accountable 

to the Head of Finance. The Audit Manager and one Audit Leader have a full CIPFA 

qualification.  Three Senior Auditors are studying for the AAT qualification.  

 

5.2 Since 1 April 2017, there are 7 full-time members in the Internal Audit Team. 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



 

 Utilisation of staff resources 

5.3 Appendix 2 contains an analysis of the use made of the time of the Internal Audit 

officers during the period between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018. The Committee’s 

attention is drawn to the following: 

 

 The table demonstrates a reduction in the number of productive days available to 

provide audits for Gwynedd Council from 944 days between 1 April 2016 and 31 

March 2017 to 707 days for the same period in 2017/18, a decrease of 237 days. 

This was due mainly to the absence of an Audit Leader, and a significant increase 

in the number of days provided for professional training and job training. 

 The number of days used to complete special investigations or responsive audits 

was 31 days, compared to 58 days in 2016/17. 

 The manner in which follow-up audits are conducted has changed with all agreed 

actions the subject of Internal Audit -  the number of days that were committed to 

completing follow-up audits was 39 days in 2017/18 compared to 45 days in 

2016/17 when a follow-up was conducted on only 12 audits. 

 

6. AUDIT PERFORMANCE 

6.1 The results of the internal audit service’s achievement measures in 2017/18 were as 

follows: 

 

Description of Measure 2016/17 

Performance 

2017/18 

Ambition 

2017/18 

Results 

% of audits in the Audit Plan that are 

ready to be presented to the Audit 

Committee because they have either 

been closed or the final report has 

been issued. 

95.93% 95% 100% 

% of internal audits with a ‘B’ opinion 

or better (corporate indicator) 
85.71% 65% 82.69% 

Number of agreed actions 

implemented within the timetable. 

(corporate measure). There was an 

agreement on 223 actions to 

mitigate risks identified during 

2016/17. (200 out of 222 have been 

implemented to an acceptable 

level).  

New 

measure 
85% 90.09% 

 

 

 

Page 92



 

7. WORK PLANS AND TARGETS 2018/19 

7.1 A draft internal audit plan for 2018/19 was presented to the Audit and Governance 

Committee in its meeting on 8 February 2018. The latest plan, containing amendments 

following the Committee meeting, is included in Appendix 3. 

7.2 Internal Audit achievement measures indicate how well we fulfil our purpose. Internal 

Audit’s achievement measures for 2018/19 are: 

 Measure Ambition 2018/19 Direction of 

Ambition 

 

% of audits in the Audit Plan that are 

ready to be presented to the Audit and 

Governance Committee because they 

have either been closed or the final 

report has been issued. 

 

95% Maintain 

 

% of internal audits with a ‘B’ opinion or 

better (corporate indicator) 

 

65% Maintain 

Number of agreed actions implemented 

within the timetable. (corporate 

measure). There was an agreement on 

163 actions to mitigate risks identified 

during 2017/18.  

85% Maintain 

 

8. INTERNAL AUDIT QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 

8.1 The result of the selfassessment conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) were presented to the Audit and Governance Committee on 13 

July 2017 along with the Quality Assurance Improvement Programme. Progress 

against the Programme can be seen in Appendix 4. 

 

9. RECOMMENDATION 

9.1 The Committee is asked to accept this report as the formal annual report of the Head 

of Internal Audit pursuant to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards for the 

financial year 2017/18. 

 

  

Page 93



 

Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 

Appendix 1 

Audit Name 
Opinion Category 

Date Presented to the 
Audit and Governance 

Committee 

CORPORATE 
30 November 2017 C Disposal of Confidential Waste  – The Use of Red Sacks and Shredders 

No Category Supporting Ffordd Gwynedd Reviews 

10 May 2018 C Learning and Development Integrated System 

10 May 2018 C Obtaining References, Proof of Identity and Evidence of Qualifications 

13 July 2017 B Awareness of the Whistleblowing Policy 

30 November 2017 B Self-service Travelling Expenses 

8 February 2018 C Safeguarding Arrangements - Field Workers' Awareness of Policy 

8 February 2018 B Safeguarding Arrangements  – Establishments 

30 November 2017 B Proactive Prevention of Fraud and Corruption 

8 February 2018 B Information Management  – Establishments 

No Category National Fraud Initiative 

EDUCATION 
Resources 

30 November 2017 B School Uniform Grant 

30 November 2017 A Pupil Deprivation Grant 

30 November 2017 A Education Improvement Grant for Schools 

8 February 2018 No Category Post-16 provision in Schools Grant 

30 November 2017 B Health and Safety - Ysgol Bro Lleu 

30 November 2017 B Health and Safety – Ysgol Pentreuchaf 

30 November 2017 B Health and Safety - Ysgol Abercaseg 

30 November 2017 C Health and Safety - Ysgol Dyffryn Ardudwy 

30 November 2017 B Health and Safety - Ysgol O M Edwards 

30 November 2017 B Health and Safety - Ysgol Llanystumdwy 

Schools 

10 May 2018 No Category School Meals Income 

No Category Schools - General 

ENVIRONMENT 
Public Protection 

10 May 2018 B Food Hygiene 

Council Land and Property 

10 May 2018 CH Smallholdings 

10 May 2018 B School Schemes – Ysgol Glancegin 

Transportation and Street Care 

Page 94



 

Audit Name 
Opinion Category 

Date Presented to the 
Audit and Governance 

Committee 

8 February 2018 B Concessionary Fares 

10 May 2018 B Car Park Income 

CORPORATE SUPPORT 
Democracy 

28 September 2017 B Training New Members 

FINANCE 
Financial 

8 February 2018 B Debt Recovery Arrangements 

Accountancy 

13 July 2017 A Precepts 

Pensions and Payroll 

10 May 2018 A Pension Fund - Annual Statements 

28 September 2017 A Death Grants 

Revenue 

10 May 2018 A Benefits – Review of Key Controls 

ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY 
Record offices, museums and the arts 

10 May 2018 No Category Storiel – Cafe Management Arrangements 

30 November 2017 B Storiel – Unannounced Visit 

Leisure 

28 September 2017 B Membership Direct Debit Payments 

28 September 2017 B Arfon Tennis Centre 

28 September 2017 B Pavillion Leisure Centre 

30 November 2017 B Bro Ffestiniog Swimming Pool 

28 September 2017 B Glan Wnion Leisure Centre 

Maritime and country parks 

10 May 2018 B Victoria Dock 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
Supporting People 

30 November 2018 A Supporting People Grant 

Adults 

10 May 2018 B Teleofal 

Residential and Day 

28 September 2017 B Plas Maesincla, Caernarfon 

28 September 2017 A Plas Hafan, Nefyn 

28 September 2017 C Plas Ogwen, Bethesda 

10 May 2018 C Supported Housing 

28 September 2017 C Tan y Marian 

10 May 2018 No Category Y Frondeg 

Page 95



 

 

  

Audit Name 
Opinion Category 

Date Presented to the 
Audit and Governance 

Committee 

Rent and Housing Management 

8 February 2018 B Housing Waiting List 

CHILDREN AND FAMILY SUPPORT 
Children and Families 

8 February 2018 A Families First Grant 

8 February 2018 A Childcare Proposal Grant 

10 May 2018 B Arrangements for Children Leaving Care 

HIGHWAYS AND MUNICIPAL 
Fleet 

8 February 2018 B Depots 

Waste Management and Streets 

10 May 2018 B Recycling Targets 

30 November 2017 B Garden Waste Collection 

GWYNEDD CONSULTANCY 
Buildings and Environmental 

10 May 2018 B Employment Status 

Number of 
Audits 

A 10 

B 32 

C 8 

CH 1 

No Category 7 

Total 58 

Summary of the number of reports in each opinion 

category, 2017/18 Plan: 

Page 96



  

    
Appendix 2      

Analysis of Internal Audit Use of Time 1 April - 31 March: 
  

     

 
2016/17   2017/18 

 

 
1,626 Total Days 1,504 

 

 
  

 
  

 
 

216 Less Holidays (Statutory and Non-Statutory) 257 
 

 
  

 
  

 

 
1,411 Total Available Days 1,247 

 

 
  Less:   

 

 
14          Special Leave 10 

 

 
29          Illness 47 

 

 
5          Professional Training 82 

 

 
62          Job Training 88 

 

 
1,301 Available Days 1,020 

 

 
  

 
  

 

 
  Less Unproductive Time:   

 

 
7          Medical Appointments 5 

 

 
26          Time Recording and Management 20 

 

 
94          Meetings and Committees 69 

 

 
1          Training Presentation 7 

 

 
2          Conducting interviews 5 

 

 
24          Background Work 26 

 

 
17          Admin etc. 14 

 

 
22          iGwynedd Project 4 

 

 
4          Audit and Governance Committee 4 

 

 
105          Internal Audit Management 107 

 

 
2          Absence Management 2 

 

 
8          IT problems 11 

 

 
5          Internal Audit Information Management Exercise 5 

 

 
0          North Wales Collaborative Working 4 

 

 
0          Meetings with External Audit 1 

 

 
  

 
  

 

 
984 Total productive days 736 

 

 
  

 
  

 

 
40 Work for SNPA 29 

 

 
  

 
  

 

 
  

 
  

 

 
944 Total productive days, Gwynedd Council 707 

 

     

Page 97



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
Analysis of the use of Gwynedd Council productive days: 

  

     

 
2016/17   2017/18 

 

 
810 Work on current year's plan 616 

 

 
3 Completion of previous year's work 8 

 

 
0 Commencement of next year's work 0 

 

 
29 Advice and Consultancy 12 

 

 
45 Follow-up work 39 

 

 
58 Responsive Work / Special Investigations 31 

 

 
944   707 

 

Page 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 

Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 

Audit Code Audit Name Days 

CORPORATE 

 20.00 Supporting Ffordd Gwynedd Reviews 

 15.00 Safeguarding Arrangements - Domestic Abuse 

 4.00 Safeguarding Arrangements  – Establishments 

 20.00 Proactive Prevention of Fraud and Corruption 

 6.00 Information Management - Establishments 

 15.00 General Data Protection Regulations 

 40.00 National Fraud Initiative 

EDUCATION 

Resources 

 10.00 Pupil Deprivation Grant 

 15.00 Education Improvement Grant for Schools 

 3.00 Post-16 provision in Schools Grant 

 25.00 Awareness of the Whistleblowing Policy – Primary and Secondary 

 15.00 School Admissions 

 30.00 Employment Status IR35 
Across the department 

 15.00 TRAC Project 
GwE 

 30.00 GwE - Employment Status IR35 
Schools 

 10.00 Schools - General 

ENVIRONMENT 

Public Protection 

 12.00 Pest Control 

 8.00 Licensing Arrangements 
Council Land and Property 

 15.00 Property Repair and Maintenance 
Transportation and Street Care 

 12.00 Public Transport 

FINANCE 

Across the department 

 12.00 IT System Security 
Accountancy 

 20.00 Interfaces with the Financial Ledger 
Pensions and Payroll 

 25.00 Contribution from Employers 
Revenue 

 12.00 Benefits – Review of Key Controls 

 

Page 99



 

Audit Code Audit Name Days 

 10.00 Council Tax System - One Digital Portal 

 10.00 Council Tax Debt Suspension and Write-Off 

 6.00 Business Rates – Valuation List 
Information Technology 

 8.00 Disposal of IT Equipment 

 10.00 IT Disaster Recovery Arrangements 

 10.00 Software Licences 

ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY 

Community Regeneration 

 5.00 Welsh Church Fund 
Leisure 

 40.00 Leisure Centres 
Maritime and country parks 

 8.00 Unannounced Visits - Income Collection 
Strategy and development Programmes 

 15.00 Caernarfon Waterfront and Town Centre Regeneration Initiative – Governance 
Arrangements 

 15.00 North Wales Growth Board 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

Across the department 

 15.00 On-call and Emergency Arrangements 

 8.00 Social Services Annual Report 
Business 

 30.00 Commissioning Arranagements 
Supporting People 

 15.00 Adult Placement Scheme (Shared Lives Scheme) 
Community Care 

 15.00 Home Care - Travelling Costs 
Residential and Day 

 12.00 Plas y Don 

 12.00 Plas Hedd 

 12.00 Hafod Mawddach 

 12.00 Cefn Rodyn 
Private Sector Housing 

 15.00 Disabled Facilities Grant 

 12.00 Houses into Homes Scheme 

CHILDREN AND FAMILY SUPPORT 

Children and Families 

 20.00 Grants 

 20.00 Care and Support Plans (Children) under Part 4 – Social Services and Wellbeing Act 
(Wales) 2014 

HIGHWAYS AND MUNICIPAL 

Fleet 

 15.00 Diesel Tanks and Disel Management 

 

Page 100



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Code Audit Name Days 

Waste Management and Streets 

 12.00 Street Enforcement 

GWYNEDD CONSULTANCY 

Across the department 

 15.00 Flood Management 

 766.00 

 

Page 101



 

Appendix 4 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 

ACTION 
NO. 

PSIAS STANDARD CONFORMANCE WITH THE 
STANDARD 

PROPOSED ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TIMESCALE PROGRESS 

01 1110 – Organisational 
Independence 

Is feedback sought from the 
chair of the audit committee 
for the CAE’s performance 
appraisal? 

Gwynedd Council is in the 
process of developing a 360-
degree appraisal system for 
managers – the Chair of the 
Audit and Governance 
Committee to be invited to 
provide feedback at the Audit 
Manager’s next appraisal. 

Head of Finance 
and 

Senior Manager 
– Revenues and 

Risk 

31/03/2018 

The 360-degree 
appraisal system has 
not yet been 
developed, but the 
Chair of the Audit 
and Governance 
Committee attends 
performance 
meetings along with 
the Cabinet Member 
for Finance. 

02 1310 – Requirements of 
the Quality Assurance 
and Improvement 
Programme 

Does the QAIP include both 
internal and external 
assessments? 

An external assessment will be 
carried out by the CAE of 
Carmarthenshire County 
Council in accordance with the 
WCAG peer review 
arrangements. 

Audit Manager 31/12/2017 

The external 
assessment is in 
progress by the 
Carmarthenshire 
County Council CAE. 

03 1320 – Reporting on the 
Quality Assurance and 
Improvement 
Programme 

Has the CAE reported the 
results of the external 
assessments to senior 
management and the 
board? 

The result of the external 
assessment to be presented to 
the Audit and Governance 
Committee. Audit Manager 08/02/2018 

The results of the 
external assessments 
will be presented to 
the Audit and 
Governance 
Committee upon 
receipt of the report. 

P
age 102



ACTION 
NO. 

PSIAS STANDARD CONFORMANCE WITH THE 
STANDARD 

PROPOSED ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TIMESCALE PROGRESS 

04 1320 – Reporting on the 
Quality Assurance and 
Improvement 
Programme 

Has the results of ongoing 
monitoring of the quality 
and assurance programme 
and progress against the 
improvement plan been 
communicated at least 
annually? 

Progress made against the 
quality assurance 
improvement programme to 
be included in the Head of 
Internal Audit Annual Report. 

Audit Manager 10/05/2018 

Progress against the 
quality assurance 
improvement 
programme 

05 1320 – Reporting on the 
Quality Assurance and 
Improvement 
Programme 

Do the results include the 
assessor’s or assessment’s 
team’s evaluation with 
regards to the degree of the 
internal audit activity’s 
conformance with the 
PSIAS? 

The external assessments 
evaluation will be reported in 
the Head of Internal Audit 
Annual Report. Audit Manager 10/05/2018 

This will be 
incorporated upon 
receiving the report 
of the external 
assessor. 

06 1322 – Disclosure of 
Non-conformance 

Has the CAE reported any 
instances of non-
conformance with the PSIAS 
to the board? 

Any instances of non-
conformance to be reported to 
the Audit and Governance 
Committee and any significant 
deviations to be included in the 
annual governance statement. 
 
 
 

Audit Manager 
&  

Senior Manager 
– Revenues and 

Risk 

As required 

There are no 
instances of non-
conformance or any 
significant 
deviations. 

P
age 103



ACTION 
NO. 

PSIAS STANDARD CONFORMANCE WITH THE 
STANDARD 

PROPOSED ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TIMESCALE PROGRESS 

07 2450 – Overall Opinion Does the annual report 
incorporate: 
a) A statement of 

conformance with the 
PSIAS? 

b) The result of the QAIP? 
c) Progress against any 

improvement plans 
resulting from the QAIP? 

The Head of Internal Audit 
Annual Report to incorporate a 
statement of conformance 
with the PSIAS and progress 
against any improvement plan 
resulting from the QAIP. 

Audit Manager 10/05/2018 

Head of Internal 
Audit Annual Report 

 

 

 

P
age 104


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES
	7a GWYNEDD COUNCIL
	2018 Audit Plan – Gwynedd Council
	Summary
	Audit of accounts
	Statutory audit functions
	Other financial audit work

	Performance audit
	Certification of grant claims and returns
	Fee, audit team and timetable
	Fee
	Audit team
	Timetable

	Future developments to my audit work
	Respective responsibilities
	Audit of accounts
	Performance audit

	Performance work in last year’s audit outline still in progress
	Other future developments
	Forthcoming key IFRS changes
	General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
	Wales Pension Partnership
	Good Practice Exchange

	National value-for-money studies


	7b GWYNEDD PENSION FUND
	8 INTERNAL AUDIT OUTPUT 29/1/18 - 31/3/18
	9 HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

